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)GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
31 March 2014

2014%3H31H
NORTHERN CHINA #4t  EASTERN CHINA #&

Self-operated B /& : 21 (21) Self-operated B &E&: 17 (17)
Licensed fh&JE : 394 (339) Licensed f#/E : 144 (111)
B Ay 1,208 (1,022) No. of shops JE4H#E : 415 (360) | No. of shops /EFZE : 161 (128)

Mainland China
CENTRAL CHINA #

Self-operated B%&J& : 45 (39)
Licensed fmh#/E : 184 (135)
No. of shops JEHEZ B : 229 (174)

CANADA
mex
T

THE UNITED STATES
x
2

221,268 (1,072

Worldwide total number of shops

HONG KONG
BB

MACAU

. RF
' 100 45 (37)
SINGAPORE
Remarks: Figures as at 31 March 2013 are shown in brackets i
B R20133531 0.2 HERIERNER 1 AUSTRALIA
g ]
\ 1 (0)
NUMBER OF SHOPS | 542 H
31 March 2014 31 March 2013 Y-0-Y Change
2014%£3A318 2013F3A4318 RER
Hong Kong &7 37 +8
Macau J2F9 9 +1
Self-operated B4 &
- Tier | —#sih 21 -
- Tier Il =% 34 +3
- Tier Il & IV =48 K PUARI 23 +3
Mainland China Sub-total /Nat 78 +5
RER Licensed &k /&
- Tier | —#R3kTH 183 +25
- Tier Il Z&&m 318 +37
- Tier Il & IV =48 R PUARS T 443 +119
Sub-total /\at 944 +181
Sub-total /\&t 1,022 +186
Other Locations Hfthith [ 4 1
Total & £t 1,072 +196




OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

EERE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (Hks milion) | WA Km A3 4T (2@ i)

REVENUE BY MARKET
BmHaEZBA

14,988
+41.8%

HONG KONG,
MACAU &
OVERSEAS
B ORPR
o

78.0% (78.8%)

22.0%
(21.2%)

4,227
148.7%

MAINLAND CHINA
FEIRH

SEGMENTAL PROFIT BY MARKET

BHiE2Ez2ER
1,820
74.4% (72.2%) 4 61.8%
HONG KONG,
MACAU &
OVERSEAS
BERFIR
b1

25.6%

MAINLAND CHINA
B R

Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2013

are shown in brackets

it BLE 20139F3H31HIFFEZ HEBEFRES AT

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | =

Hong Kong and Macau &5 & 2P
Mainland China "Bl it

Gold & Platinum &4 & 5%
Gem-set K E

Overall 2 g8

REVENUE BY BUSINESS

REXRIEZRA
16,164
84.1% (81.5%) +47.8%
RETAILNG
TEER
618
137.3%

3.2% (3.4%) LICENSING

BB ETS
2,433
120.0%

WHOLESALING
B

12.7%
(15.1%)

SEGMENTAL PROFIT BY BUSINESS

REB DB 22 EER
1,699
69.5% (68.7%) $58.7%
RETAILING
TEXG
413

143.8%
LICENSING
e

333
+66.3%
WHOLESALING
BIBEL

13.6%
(12.8%)

SALES* BY PRODUCT
BREmSBZHER"
12,493
67.2% (62.7%) +53.6%
GOLD & PLATINUM
6,104

126.4%

GROSS PROFIT” BY PRODUCT
REmDBZEN "

1,506
2 72.7%

GOLD & PLATINUM

39.8% (34.5%)

2,283
£37.7%
GEM-SET

re

60.2% (65.5%)

# Sales = Revenue — Licensing Income

HERE = WA - RIEFFRA

~ Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EF = FEEN - RIEFBEF

FHERR

31 March 2014
2014%3H31H

Y-0-Y Change
HESML

46.4%

62.7%
59.2%
25.9%
47.8%

31 March 2013

2013F3A31H
SRReld Y-0-Y Change SSSG*
AERERR REE FAEEEER
22.0% 11.1% 7.2%
45.9% 36.3% 7.3%
36.0% 15.1% 9.8%
4.8% 9.4% 3.3%
24.9% 13.1% 7.4%

** Same store sales growth represents a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full month operations in the comparable periods and such data

does not include sales of licensed shops.

FEHERRAR B EENAELRARTEANNHERELE  ARBERT TREREENHER -



) FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

/

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE |

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS |

—_

A 0N

VR E

(HKSm) EES T

Revenue 4A

Gross Profit £

Operating Profit £ &3 7

Profit for the year 4 Wi Fl

Profit Attrioutable to Equity Holders #2557 AfE(E & 7
Basic Eamings per Share SREAZF

Final Dividend per Share Fi% R 2R S

Annual Dividend per Share &2 F iz 8

Dividend Payout Ratio /& .t %

Gross Profit Margin 7%

Operating Margin 8843 #i|%

Net Margin J% 7%

EBITDA A& #IS - $178 - HrEREHARN

EBITDA Margin Rzt F18. - $78 - EREHA RN X
Effective Tax Rate R H =

Total Operating Expenses Percentage to Revenue 248 & 557 (A L &

Average Inventory Tumover (Days) P37 S{EEH (X)"
Inventory & (HK$ m) (BE%ETT)

Net Cash 38 (HKS m) (BEHT)

Bank Borrowings #4715 & (HKS m) (B&#T)
Gearing Ratio (& %2

Debt-to-Equity Ratio & e & b,

Return on Equity (ROE) FR R %5 [l =4

Current Ratio EhL, =

Capital Expenditure EZAF X (HK$ m) (AEAT)

(Openlng Inventory + Closing Inventory)/2/COGS
= (HGEE + BIXEE )/Z/ig = RS (FIRR dm

ERR

For the

year ended

31 March 2014
HE20145F
3A31A

LEE

HK$3.17# 7T
HK$0.6387& 7T
HK$1.268/& 7T

40.1%

2,432
12.7%

19.5%
10.8%

ZHIET

31 March
2014
2014

3A31H

For the

year ended

31 March 2013
HZE20135F
3A31H
H5E

13,412
2,830

1,501

1,246

1,243
HK$2. 11787
HK$0.487 7T
HK$0.8678 7T
40.8%
21.1%
11.2%

9.3%

1,600

11.9%

17.3%

10.8%

31 March
2013
20134

3A31H

162

4,955
1,187

0

N/A TR
16.9%
19.3%

6.7

307

excludlng; Cost of Llcensmg Income)* Number of the dates for the year

Y-0-Y Change
BES(

43.3%

48.9%

53.8%

49.8%

50.0%

50.0%

32.9%

47.4%

0.7) p.p.EHEDS
08p.p.EEAE
08 pp.EEAE
04ppHEBEDE
52.0%
08p.p.EEAE
22ppEEDE

Y-o0-Y Change
BES(

(24)

25.6%

4.2%

N/A NEA

N/A TFiEF
78p.p.AELE
5.1 pp EESE
(1.9

(40.1%)

Geanng Ratio = Lon%term Bank Loan + Short- term Bank Loan + Bank Overdrafts)/CapnaI and res%v%s attributable to equity holders of the Company

B = (REMEIE

RITER + BRERRTER + RITEX) /AR AREIFA AREER

Debt-to- Eqwty Ratio = g_ong -term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) /Ca |ta| and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

aEERLE = (RY

The calculations of ROE for the year are as follows:

= profit attributable to equﬂy holders of the Company for the year/Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

% SR A 2 (O] K Ty IR A

5+ MHAME) AN REEEE ARH]

THAEE
= FRARR WEﬁﬁ%ﬁ/\J%‘MmTFIJ/ZK’A RSB A ARG ER LB
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CORPORATE PROFILE
7]

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group principally
engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark
licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum
jewellery, gold ornaments and gem-set jewellery, with a total
of over 1,200 shops in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China,
Singapore, the United States, Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NESEBEBR)BRAR(TARA]) REKB QR (FRHEA
SEDKIMNGF  EEARTEAANEIERETERL
— o ARBETENREREEHCEN FEHMMREEH
ZERE R HME BEREERTEXRF AKEREHE
BRI PEAM - FT N KB NEARFGEMN K
B 8 i81,2000H & & o

KRBT FS AT EBBHAERSGMBER A ER LT -

CORPORATE VISION

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value.
The Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to
reach its goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired
brand, and as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned
brands in the luxury industry, the Group commits to crafting
the finest jewellery for customers to further establish its
reputation in the international market.

[BERIE e BREZ] SAEENEXRS Mm@ 0 EBIE -
AEE-—EBRFEIE FLBNEABRAERBAREE
Mg - ERBENEBECZRE AEERNREHBETR
HRELEH  WE—FPEVERBERMS LHEE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

In April and June last year, the international gold price sharply
hit recent new lows, triggering gold rushes. It created a
soaring demand for gold products. The Group flexibly utilised
cross-selling techniques, driving the sales and revenue of
various products. In addition, as the gold price remained
relatively low, the sales of gold also grew satisfactorily and
lasted for a few months after the gold rushes. Coupled
with the increasing gross profit margin of gem-set jewellery
products, despite the growth of sales slowed down in the
second half of the year, the Group continued to perform well
and record fruitful profits, generating attractive returns for our
shareholders. Accordingly, the Group performed remarkably
for the financial year 2013/14 where the financial indicators
including revenue, profit attributable to equity holders and
dividend per share hit their record highs.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group set another
record high and recorded total revenue amounting
HK$19,214,930,000 (2013: HK$13,411,691,000),
representing an increase of 43.3% over last year. Profit
attributable to equity holders also reached its record high
and increased significantly by 50.0% to approximately
HK$1,864,928,000 from last year’s HK$1,242,951,000, with
an earnings per share of HK$3.17 (2013: HK$2.11). The
board of directors of the Company proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.638 per share (2013: HK$0.48) for the year ended
31 March 2014. In addition to the paid interim dividend of
HK$0.63 per share (2013: HK$0.38 per share), dividend for
the financial year 2013/14 amounted to HK$1.268 per share
(2013: HK$0.86 per share), setting another record high. The
dividend payout ratio is approximately 40.1% on a full year
basis (2013: 40.8%).

BAIAR

KAZRXABEER (BER) BR AR ([A
Aal)REMBAR (BB IAER]) MA
IREAEFHE2014F3F3MBILFEEZE

EFAAK6H BReEXETHREM RN
K -sl#lEed]  SESEMB KA
HRBEREAXINHEERDT  HPLAEES
BERWHEENMBAN LT - mI0 2EF
BRERNEEKF  BEEEH IR cETH
EMBEERTEARERAZA  INLERE
BMEREMNERNES  AETFFHEEL
REMRE AEBNEGEREENRER
ME RRRERABEDR - FJt - AEHE
R201BMAT R FEXERABA - WA
REFE ARG SN & B S A = #5

o

=]

HZE2014F3A3HILFE  REFRWA
BlE2 83 S © #£19,214,930,000/8 7T (2013
F:13,411,691,0008 L) WEFHEE
43.3% - ERFHEABEEFTEELF S -
% %1,242,951,000% 7T A 18 & /150.0% =
#91,864,928,00058 7T * MBI & T8 A53.17
BT (2013F 2118 T) - A AR EECE
FEMAEE2014F3A318 IF FEIRMN KK
B R%0.6387% 7T (20134 : 0.488 7T) » &
A B & 1+ 7 57 % 8 & F%0.637% JT (20134 -
FA%0.387TT) » 2013/ 14 HEE R EA &
BEFH&1.2687 7T (20134 - HH%0.86/E ) -
MABLEEH® - 2F KB ELHI01% -
(20134 : 40.8%) °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

During the year under review, the Group successfully
expanded its retail territory and accelerated its pace of
business expansion. The Group opened its world’s largest
flagship store in Macau and the first Mainland China flagship
store in Wuhan, signifying a new milestone in the Group’s
network expansion. In addition, the Group also successfully
entered the watch market in Mainland China. Besides, the
Group had the grand opening of its first shop in Sydney,
Australia in December 2013 to extend its retail network
coverage to seven countries and regions worldwide, including
Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, the United
States, Canada and Australia. During the year under review,
the Group had 196 net newly opened shops globally, out of
which 186 were in Mainland China. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group had a total of 1,268 shops globally (2013: 1,072
shops), of which 1,208 shops (2013: 1,022 shops) were
located in Mainland China.

On 6 June 2014, the Group completed the acquisition
of 50% interest in the issued share capital of China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited, an operating company
engaging in jewellery retailing and franchising under the
brandname of “3D-GOLD”, and kicked off the dual brand
strategy to mark a new page of the Group. Leveraging on
the Group’s professional expertise in jewellery retailing and
brand management, we strongly believe that the cooperation
between two renowned brands with similar business
models will generate synergies and facilitate the long-
term development of both parties. Moreover, it will further
expand the economies of scale and thus achieving a win-win
outcome.

In addition, in September 2013, leveraging on the Group’s
excellent achievements in brand building, the Group won
the “Brand of the Year — Retail” of the JNA Awards 2013.
In February 2014, the Group also won the “Hong Kong Top
Brand Ten Year Achievement Award” at the “2013 Hong
Kong Top Brand Awards” jointly organised by the Hong Kong
Brand Development Council and the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong. Such honours and awards not
only further strengthen the Group’s leading position in the
international jewellery market, but also are testimony to
“Lukfook Jewellery” as a brand well-received by customers
worldwide.

REBEFER  AEERNBEASTERE
MRT EBBERNTK - AEBRBEPIFR
TEREANEREE TERERAKTE
RPBENMAERE R E2AEETEHES
BEELEOHERRE BN REEIRK
NWHETFRAMNERES - B KEE
RBMNEBREHEREDER2013F12REE
HE STERKBEZ2HLEBR it
& BEERE R FEAM - FE -
EH - -MEREEM REBFERN K&
B2 ECFE R 1960 - H 186 AL
AR E A o B E2014F3A31H I - A&
B ek B1,2680H 54 (20134 : 1,072
) - Ed1,208f (20134 : 1,022f8) R
R A o

MR2014F6A6H AEBEZXWEN €=
B AR ERETERETEEER 2 E
BAR —HEESEEEBR AT — 50%E
BITRA R B TERBEERE
AREAETESLE— B - BREAEENIK
ETEEHARMEE A EMNEELR R
MR EMEREBEUSEEEA AL RE
WEE BEEHRANE  REZEFHRER
BR - WiHE—PEAREBELEE  EHEE -

LEAN - R2013F9H - AEB/REREET
FEZEMAKT - LE2013F EINAK 2
[FEMBAE: TEE] - HN2014528 -
REBENRERTEREBERBERESPE
MEMASAM2013FEFELRE | —[F
BB TFERRE] o FMKRENRE—F
BErASEERBERKREMSMEEMN &
EBTIANEHRE] nEBEIHAIHESR
B o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

OUTLOOK

Due to the policies in Mainland China, sluggish stock market
and property market as well as the slowing economy, the
purchasing power of the Mainland Chinese is weakened. In
addition, as the consumer sentiment of tourists travelling to
Hong Kong from Mainland China under the Individual Visit
Scheme also decreases, the jewellery retail industry will
face considerably high pressure in the short to mid-term.
Moreover, given the high base effect of the gold rushes last
year, the Group remains prudent about the growth prospects
of our results for the financial year 2014/15. Accordingly, the
Group will endeavour to enhance the sales and gross profit
margin of the gem-set jewellery products in the coming year,
and strengthen the training of frontline staff in various aspects
to increase operational efficiency with a view to offsetting the
impact of slowing sales growth on our results performance.

In the long-term, as the per capita purchasing power of
Mainland citizens increases, coupled with the implementation
of favourable government policies to boost domestic
consumption, Mainland China remains to be a market with
tremendous growth potential and the outlook of the jewellery
market is still promising. Accordingly, we will continue to seize
the market opportunities and actively expand our distribution
network to consolidate our market position in Mainland China.

| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and
other stakeholders for their strong support and contributions
to the Group’s success. Moving forward, the Group will
continue to implement practical and sound growth measures,
strengthen its competitive advantages and further consolidate
its leading position in the market with a view to generating
sustainable returns for our shareholders and establishing a
new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board

WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014

Al

B AR R 53R T A T AR A K
RESNTE ETERBTHEENT
B MAPRBEAEBHITREFE BB BRI
RIS BRRETEXAEPREARNAZR
RKESD - BE GEF(REHIcIZzEE
BMET AEEH2014/16H B FENE
BEREASSEEREE - At ERK—F
AEERBNIEAKREEHERZHERE
M WHRERARABE T E2IFI - &
IRFTEEME - NRERBIBRBUEE %
BT E -

REMS  BETBEAMERAGEENE
Mo MEBFALEENRFEE - FERA
WHHINHFEERANEREN  KEEEA
SDARM - At RPBEBILET SR
o REBRNRDHEE  BEASENPEHE
W T S AL -

AEEOKRY  2RAMWET BR B
B EBRBANEMKOHENRNIBNE
Bl AABHRBAROHE | RF - AEE
REBBABERROBERBE  MARFE
ZoE-—FEERMS ENEEMML - S
BRSO 4% 4B (O] ¥ B A8 ST R T O b SRR o

EEEEm
FIEFRITEAREL
RER

EFB - 2014F6H25H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results

In April and June last year, the international gold price sharply
hit recent new lows, triggering gold rushes. The sales volume
of gold products increased substantially as a result. Coupled
with the utilisation of cross-selling techniques, the sales
of gem-set jewellery products also recorded satisfactory
growth. In addition, as the gold price remained relatively
low after the gold rushes, the subsequent demand for
gold continued to grow for quite some time. Despite that
the growth of sales for the second half of the year slowed
down, the growth of overall sales remained satisfactory.
For the year ended 31 March 2014, Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set another record high and recorded
revenue of HK$19,214,930,000 (2013: HK$13,411,691,000),
representing 43.3% growth over that of previous year. Gross
profit increased by 48.9%, reaching HK$4,214,154,000
(2013: HK$2,830,031,000). Gross profit margin was 21.9%,
which was slightly higher than last year’s 21.1%. This was
mainly due to the quick turnover of gold products during
the year given the decreasing gold price. Accordingly, the
gross profit margin of gold products remained at a normal
level of 11.9% (2013: 10.3%). Apart from this, the gross
profit margin of gem-set jewellery products increased from
last year’s 34.3% to 37.4%. Therefore, despite that the
sales mix and sales growth of gem-set jewellery products
were lower than that of gold products, the overall gross
profit margin increased. Furthermore, the growth of sales
and gross profit margin led to the increase in the gross
profit of gem-set jewellery products, making it the largest
contributor to the overall increase in gross profit. During the
year under review, with a stable total operating expenses
of 10.8% (2013: 10.8%) to revenue, the operating profit
of the Group increased by 53.8% to HK$2,308,755,000
(2013: HK$1,501,342,000). Operating margin was 12.0%
(2013: 11.2%). The profit attributable to equity holders hit
its record high and reached HK$1,864,928,000 (2013:
HK$1,242,951,000), representing a 50.0% increase. Basic
earnings per share were HK$3.17 (2013: HK$2.11).

Overview

During the year under review, the Group opened a net total
of 186 shops (181 of which are licensed shops) in Mainland
China, 8 shops in Hong Kong, 1 shop in Macau and 1 shop
in Australia. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of
1,268 shops globally in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau,
Singapore, the United States, Canada and Australia.

MBEERR

E ¥

EEFA4ARGA  BRBEReBE2ER TR
MEHE SRS H  SE=HSERH
SAEEM MEXNEEFRHZES £
KEEMEMNEELEEEAE ME
CHIBEZeEBDNARE  FEERESZE
KEFERE BB MATFFEHEN
RENRE BRHEEERNARE -HE
2014F3A31BLEFE  ~"E5E (HEK) A
RARIMENRBRAR (HBIALE]) - Ik
ABEIFES & #19,214,930,000 7 7T
(20134F : 13,411,691,000 7T) * & & F 1%
fN43.3% ° F K| _+ F48.9% % 4,214,154,000
# 7T (20134 : 2,830,031,0005# 7T) ° E 7
K H21.9% BB EFMN21.1%c TEHR
AFEEESERZENERESETENG
T BERAR DEEFEEKTE
#11.9% (20134 1 10.3%)  ERHKEH
# 2 F F R B #t = F34.3%RF+ £37.4% °
Ei MESREEHERBESEENEL R
FlEREcEmAE  BEEF REE
FIiRF-BE HEREMNERNEER S5
EEMERENN LA K AEEEERIE
EZBREEE REOBEFERN BREZ
FSZ (R UL R AR5 #910.8% (2013
F:10.8% ) KF - A E B AL ERF A
+F+53.8%%2,308,755,0007% 7T (20134 :
1,501,342,00078 70) + & &% 7 X A212.0%
(20134 : 11.2%) - = #FH AL R F Al
EEFT S 0 #£1,864,928,000/ 7T (20134 -
1,242,951,000/% JT) * 38 J150.0% - & K &
REF A3A7HE T (20135F : 21178 7T)

#;=

REBEFER AEERPEAFILEE
H1gef JEM (AP181fl AREIE) NE
75 Bl A8 5 4 0 R P ROR N BI & 1R T
& o B 22014F3A318 IF  AEBMK 2K
HE1268FEMH BELTEANMD  FF
SEPY - FhNYE - =B - AR RRM o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

The retail business continued to be the primary sales
driver for the Group with an annual growth of 47.8%. This
resulted in HK$16,163,683,000 (2013: HK$10,933,441,000)
of retail revenue, accounting for 84.1% (2013: 81.5%) of
total revenue. The wholesale business grew by 20.0%
over the previous year to HK$2,432,916,000 (2013:
HK$2,027,747,000), bringing in 12.7% (2013: 15.1%) of
the Group’s total revenue. Licensing income accounted
for the remaining 3.2% (2013: 3.4%) and amounted to
HK$618,331,000 (2013: HK$450,503,000), a growth of
37.3%. Gold products remained the favourite items among
customers and together with platinum products contributed
approximately 67.2% (2013: 62.7%) to the Group’s total
sales with 53.6% (2013: 14.2%) sales growth while gem-set
jewellery products contributed approximately 32.8% (2013:
37.3%) with 26.4% (2013: 10.7%) sales growth. For the year
under review, overall Same Store Sales Growth* (“SSSG”) of
the Group was 24.9% (2013: 7.4%). SSSG for Hong Kong
and Macau markets and the Mainland China market were
22.0% (2013: 7.2%) and 45.9% (2013: 7.3%), respectively.
SSSG for gold and platinum was 36.0% (2013: 9.8%) and
that for gem-set jewellery products was 4.8% (2013: 3.3%).

The Group has been striving to expand its product mix to
offer customers with a wider selection of choices. Since 2010,
the Group has been endeavouring to expand the mid-to-high-
end watch business. As at 31 March 2014, the Group was
the authorised dealer carrying 31 watch brands, including
BALL and its BALL for BMW series, BULOVA, CERTINA,
COINWATCH, CORUM, DOXA, ENICAR, ERNEST BOREL,
GRONEFELD, H. MOSER & CIE, HAMILTON, LAMBORGHINI,
LONGINES, LUDOVIC BALLOUARD, MAURICE LACROIX,
MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, TAG HEUER, TISSOT, URWERK,
EMILE CHOURIET, HUBLOT, ARNOLD & SON, ZENITH,
ORIS, BALMAIN, BULGARI, EMPORIO ARMANI, BURBERRY,
VAN GOGH. For the year under review, the watch
business contributed a revenue of HK$301,176,000 (2013:
HK$236,810,000), representing 1.6% (2013: 1.8%) of the
Group’s total revenue with 27.2% growth over last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong remained the key source of profit for the Group,
contributing approximately 62.2% (2013: 65.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue and amounted to HK$11,957,141,000
(2013: HK$8,715,955,000). This represented a growth of
37.2%. As at 31 March 2014, the Group operated a total of
45 (2013: 37) self-operated shops in Hong Kong including 8
newly opened shops during the year (5 of which were located
in prime locations).

Same store sales growth represents a comparison of sales of the same
self-operated shop having full month operations in the comparable
periods and such data does not include sales of licensed shops.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

Mainland Chinese visitors continued to be the major driver for
the retail business in Hong Kong. According to the statistics
on visitor arrivals published by Hong Kong Tourism Board
in January 2014, arrivals from Mainland China in 2013 grew
by 16.7% over the previous year and reached approximately
40,745,277, setting another historical record high in the
number of arrivals from Mainland China for the year and
representing nearly five times growth since the launch of
the “Individual Visit Scheme” 10 years ago. As mentioned
in the Research Brief on “Individual Visit Scheme” released
by the Research Office of the Legislative Council Secretariat
in May 2014, using the shopping expenditure of “Individual
Visit Scheme” visitors as a proxy for their contribution to the
value of total retail sales, it is observed that the proportion
of shopping expenditure by “Individual Visit Scheme” visitors
in the value of total retail sales has been on a steady rise
over the past decade, from 4.5% in 2004 (first annual figure
available) to 22.2% in 2013. Benefiting from the fast-growing
number of arrivals and strong purchasing power, the Group’s
total revenue in Hong Kong grew substantially by almost
twelve times over these ten years.

Similar to Hong Kong, Macau tourism has also been booming
as a result of the “Individual Visit Scheme”. According to the
tourism statistics published by the Statistics and Census
Service of Macau Special Administrative Region, in 2013,
Mainland arrivals reached 18,630,000, representing an
increase of 10% over the previous year. Given the steady
visitor flow, our world’s largest flagship store had the grand
opening at Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau in June 20183.
The Group had a total of 10 (2013: 9) self-operated shops as
at the end of March 2014 in Macau. Revenue generated from
the Macau market amounted to HK$2,886,397,000 (2013:
HK$1,751,000,000), representing a spectacular growth rate
of 64.8%, and contributing 15.0% (2013: 13.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

Mainland China

The Group continued to benefit from the continuing economic
growth in Mainland China during the year under review.
Revenue from Mainland China grew by 48.7% over last year
to HK$4,226,770,000 (2013: HK$2,841,582,000), accounting
for 22.0% (2013: 21.2%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

According to the overview of precious metal jewellery market
(covering 33 cities in Mainland China) for 2012 published
by Platinum Guild International in November 2013, 90% of
urban Chinese women own more than one precious metal
jewellery piece. Given the accelerated urbanisation of various
regions in Mainland China, coupled with the rising per capita
disposable income, the demand for gold and gold jewellery
as investments or accessories continues to be strong in
Mainland China. Accordingly, the Group strove to further
penetrate into the Mainland Chinese market and expand its
footprint to lower-tier cities in order to increase its brand
coverage ratio. In May 2013, the Group opened its first
Mainland China flagship store in Wuhan and marked a new
milestone in the Group’s network expansion there. During
the year under review, the Group had 83 self-operated shops
(2013: 78 self-operated shops) and 1,125 licensed shops
(2013: 944 licensed shops) in Mainland China, adding to a
total of 1,208 shops there (2013: 1,022 shops).

Overseas Development

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the
World”, Lukfook has been seeking opportunities all over the
world. During the year under review, the Group opened its
first self-operated shop in Australia. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group operated a total of 5 overseas shops (2013: 4
overseas shops). In addition to the newly opened shop in
Australia, there are 1 shop in Singapore, 2 shops in the
United States and 1 shop in Canada.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
reached approximately HK$1,805 million (2013: HK$1,187
million). The Group’s gearing ratio at the year-end, being
proportion of total bank borrowings of HK$568 million (2013:
HK$NIL) against total shareholders’ equity of approximately
HK$7,641 million (2013: HK$6,425 million), was 7.4% (2013:
NIL). Net cash was HK$1,237 million (2013: HK$1,187 million)
and the debt-to-equity ratio was 24.7% (2013: 16.9%).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of approximately HK$184 million (2013: HK$307
million), including the costs of properties, leasehold lands,
land use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures
and equipments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total capital
commitments approximately HK$414 million (2013: HK$17
million).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2014, the number of employees of the
Group was approximately 6,600 (2013: 5,400). Remuneration
policies were reviewed and approved by the management
regularly to ensure fair rewards and compensation for our
employees. Remuneration packages were structured to be
comparable to the market while bonuses and other merit
payments were correlated to the performances of the Group
and the employees. Such a reward system aims to motivate
employees to act in alignment with the Group’s objective
of business performance optimisation by offering financial
incentives.

OUTLOOK

In light of the uncertainties in the macroeconomic
environment in the near term, weak consumption demand,
policies in Mainland China and the slowing economy, coupled
with the high base effect as a result of the gold rushes last
year, the Group remains prudent about the business growth
in the coming year.

However, the Group is optimistic about the mid- to long-term
business development given the accelerated urbanisation
in Mainland China, rising per capita disposable income
of Mainland citizens and the introduction of favourable
government policies to promote domestic consumption.
These factors are conducive to driving the economic
growth of Mainland China and boosting the overall
consumer sentiments. Accordingly, in the long run, the
growth prospects of the gold and jewellery market remain
promising while there is still tremendous growth potential
in the Mainland China market, particularly the third-tier and
the lower-tier cities. To fully capitalise on such tremendous
market potential, the Group plans to continue to expand its
retail network in the third-tier and lower-tier cities through
licensed shops. In addition, we will also make a strategic
move to open flagship stores in prominent cities to strengthen
our penetration into the Mainland China market. In the
coming years, the Group intends to maintain the growth
of new openings (mainly licensed shops) in the Mainland
China market of approximately 15% each year and enhance
brand image by capitalising on the traditional media and
strengthening the advertising and promotion of emerging
media.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R M AT

The Group derives its key source of profit from the retail
business in Hong Kong where the visitors from Mainland
China are the major driver of business there. The continuous
increase in the number of arrivals from Mainland China in the
future will depend on the adjustments to the terms of the
Individual Visit Scheme between Hong Kong and Mainland
China. As the Individual Visit Scheme has far reaching
implications on the overall economy and the people’s
livelihood in Hong Kong, accordingly, the Group hopes that
the relevant authorities will make the adjustments prudently in
order not to dampen the retail industry materially. In addition,
in light of the recent unsatisfactory macroeconomic conditions
which weakened the retail market, the rising rental prices of
shops saw a slowdown. Accordingly, the Group will leverage
this timing opportunity to optimise the retail network in
Hong Kong and seek superior and prime locations to further
strengthen our leading position in the market.

According to the statistics in the research report about “020
and Big Data” published by iResearch, the total turnover of
the e-commerce market in China amounted to RMB1,841
billion in 2013. Of which, retail related products accounted
for 7.9%. To seize the opportunity, the Group will actively
develop its e-commerce business and target to expand
the number of its sales platforms from four now including
tmall.com to eight platforms so as to drive the speedy growth
of e-commerce business.

While strengthening the training of frontline staff on product
knowledge, sales techniques and quality of service, the
Group will endeavour to enhance the sales and gross profit
margin of gem-set jewellery products to mitigate the impact
of high base effect due to the remarkable performance for
the financial year 2013/14 on the results performance in the
coming year.

Looking ahead, given the lack of clear global economic
direction, the operating environment in the financial year
2014/15 will be challenging. The substantial decrease in
SSSG of 56.4% (2013: positive SSSG of 96.3%) in April
and May 2014 is within expectation. Furthermore, when
comparing the retail sales amount of April to May in 2014
to the same period in 2012, a double digit growth was
recorded while SSSG decreased by 13.1% mainly due to
drop in gold price in current period as compared to the same
period in 2012. Given that Hong Kong remains a first-class
jewellery trading centre within the region, the Group remains
optimistic about the demand for gem-set jewellery products
from local residents and tourists in the long run and expects
improvement in the second half of the financial year 2014/15.
Accordingly, the Group will, by adhering to a pragmatic and
sound development direction, actively cope with market
challenges and seize growth opportunities to enhance our
own competitive advantages and strengthen our leading
position in the international jewellery retail market.
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BRANDING
R hE 2R B

Themed “Love is Beauty”, the Group put forth its branding
efforts through various aspects including marketing
campaigns and excellent service programmes to build a
brand image that is welcoming and warm-hearted and to
strengthen customers’ emotional attachment to the brand.
During the year under review, the Group again launched
the brand new TV commercials themed “Love is Beauty” to
relay the core values of the brand to the target customers
through the mass media. At the same time, the new excellent
customer service programme named “Delivering the Beauty of
Love with Six Heartfelt Services” was introduced in our shops
worldwide, offering customers with unparalleled shopping
experience by caring for customers’ needs heartfeltly.

Our continuous branding efforts are well-received by the
industry and market. During the year under review, Lukfook
received a number of awards in branding, corporate
management, service quality, community welfare and
environmental protection. These awards are testimony to the
excellent achievements of the Group.
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Marketing Campaigns
MRS S

PROMOTION ACTIVITIES
EW#R

During the year under review, the Group rolled out the brand new “Love is Beauty” TV and print
advertisements. Apart from placing advertisements on traditional promotion platforms such as TV, magazines,
newspapers and outdoor advertisements in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and overseas, the Group
also organised many public relations activities and sponsored various TV programmes, movies and concerts,
etc. In this Chinese New Year holiday, the Group was the exclusive title sponsor of the New Year movie “Hello
Babies”, drawing overwhelming response from the public.

REBFER  AEEH#EE2HFERIIEELTFEES  BREE RPT - PEAMEIEINOER -

BE PHEEGERTARNESI TERZELEAIDREDZEERME EXNEESE  °F
REHFHE EERENTEREX(ONRES)  BERANNHEE -
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The internet development has been booming in recent years. According to the “33rd Statistical Report on
Internet Development in China” published by China Internet Network Information Center in January 2014, as
of December 2013, there were 618 million internet users in China. Along with the rapid 4G development, the
number of mobile phone internet users maintained satisfactory growth momentum and reached 500 million
users, representing annual growth of 19.1%. Accordingly, the Group seized the opportunities arising from
such consolidation and stepped up its efforts in network marketing. Apart from boosting its exposure on the
Internet through social media platforms such as Weibo, Wechat and Facebook to secure market penetration
in Hong Kong and Mainland China and relay our latest promotional information to customers, the Group also
placed advertisements on various major portals and video websites to further enhance our brand recognition.

MFER BMESERR  BEPHEBEEE ST OR2014F1 A AN(EINBRTREBELEERT
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SPONSORSHIP OF BEAUTY PAGEANT
CONTESTS

EREXLE

To further strengthen the connection between Lukfook
and the concept of beauty, the brand not only
sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery
pieces for the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for the 16th
consecutive year, but also served as the exclusive
sponsor of the diamond crown for the “Miss Universe
China Reignwood Pageant” for the 3rd year.
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Product Collections
EE mn & 5|

Well known for its exquisite product design as well as brilliant craftsmanship, the
Group’s diversified product mix fulfils the needs of a wide range of customers.
The Group has introduced the following collections, targeting middle class
and high-end consumer markets in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and
overseas:

ARENEMKHE  FLAS LS TEHNERESNLIETRBEED
FE - HEFBRLEBIINFTRFEEMS  ARERUITELR TR

“LOVE IS BEAUTY”
COLLECTION
[ZRE]ZRT

For this popular product series, our designers incorporated the concepts of
love and beauty by embedding sparkling hearts in diamond jewellery.

REFEOYPHEBRBOOE TEATANERIAELEH 2F - $E R
ERARUBOEHENRIF -
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RILAKKUMA™ COLLECTION
[E R/ NRRI R T

In collaboration with San-X and its licensing agent RM-LF
Asia, we launched a variety of Rilakkuma™ jewellery
collection. The collection includes a range of finely crafted
jewellery products and a 40-cm high giant Rilakkuma™ gold
electroplated ornament is specially designed to be displayed
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China as travelling
exhibit, featuring the adorable bear with amazingly vivid
designs to enjoy light-hearted and joyful moments in the
fast-paced metropolitan life.

BB ARSan-X M HiRERERM-F L NEFAE EL—K
FlRilakkuma™ [ B8 £X/NAE | B fn R 51 - LARS/ER) TEITIEH %
FENT - BAOITE T — 8540/ K A 4E 5 A Rilakkuma™ [
ROEIZSEEEG NHPBERZIMEREDL - HEK /)N
AR EMESESRNEERRARARRA - AEEHEER
REE T AR R EABRELENRE -

© 2014 San-X Co., Ltd. All Rights Reserved. A Licensing Programme of RM™
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WEDDING COLLECTION
el

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil
Affairs of the People’s Republic of China, there have been
on average 13 million pairs of newlyweds per year for the
past three years. The wedding market is booming, and in
order to seize this valuable business opportunity, the Group
has strategically launched a wide array of wedding products
such as the Beloved Collection of gold wedding jewellery, the
Wedding Collection of diamond jewellery, and the Platinum
Bridal Collection, which is introduced in cooperation again
with Platinum Guild International.

RIEFEARANMBRBIETOGRABERT  BE3FE
FFHHE1300BEMAGE - RIEEREANEETSNEER
O AEBEERBUERLEZREBEGER  INEE | EED
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“LOVE FOREVER”
COLLECTION

[EEAZRT

To capture the large wedding market among China’s young couples, the
“Love Forever” collection of couples’ jewellery with the abbreviation for “Love
Forever” — “LF” was promoted in collaboration with our celebrity endorser
Mr. Lam-Fung across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Its “Lovin’
Lock” couple set carries a range of 18K bangles and pendants of keys and
little locks embellished with diamonds of eternity. Only the key pendant can
unlock the bangle, making it the perfect couple set.

ARRATEFE-—RKRBENEREEMS N EELHBEZBEBILFIN
[Love Forever2HEAJIBIREMAS]  ARTRAEMELEEEHER=
WREAEIOHEIBRER  B18KSITEL SR UABRE RN EHABERE
FELEPEEH BURKEANEL BERELWBRASESHITH
FERBENBRER -
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Shopping Experience
s

To provide a distinctive shopping experience for our customers, the Group
is committed to creating a cosy shopping environment using luminous
materials throughout its shops where customers can enjoy shopping
comfortably in a carefree way. In addition, new flagship stores were opened
in Wuhan and Macau in May and June 2013 respectively, equipped with
glamorous decoration, a “Wedding Zone”, a wide variety of jewellery and
superior shopping services for customers to enjoy our unparalleled shopping
experience. Moreover, during the year under review, we successively
organised a number of wedding expos in Hong Kong and Mainland China to
allow our customers the opportunity to experience Lukfook’s quality sincere
services apart from our shops.
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Excellent Service
188 iR %

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would Z2EENERYBNHRBEILR - K&
not be successful without a commitment to excellent service.  E 4B S MRTG MR E R BFRTE1E -

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality KZE[ENEE BEAE UEAE|HE
Services and Customer-oriented”, we act in the customers’ | @ o ) B PV e D
best interest in our operational management. In line with TEE ’f/'é&EEE’EQLJ’Ag‘é%mﬁg’i*E’%
the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the brand new BMIBREIOMEERETE  HEH2HX
“Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services” OMOfEAL HAERE | SHMERRETE -
excellent customer service programme was introduced to B[] THREBEEEE  BAABERIREED
understand the customers’ need heartfeltly and offer quality BEHERE  REEALBRB L ESTR
sincere services for customers with a view to relaying the S — i FE T - 5
culture of Six Healtfelt Services to each customer all over the ™ MR
world.
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The Group also engaged an independent agency to provide
mystery shopper services to assess Lukfook’s products and
quality of services regularly. Meanwhile, in order to optimise
and enhance the services of the Group and strengthen its
market competitiveness, the Group also regularly carried
out customer satisfaction survey in striving for excellence to
cater for customers’ changing needs. Currently, the tailored
and professional advice provided by our sales team as well
as the complimentary services such as free laser engraving
and certificates for jadeite and diamond are well-received by
customers.

The Group’s efforts to serve its customers to the highest
calibre and make a valuable contribution to the jewellery
industry have been recognised with a wide array of awards
for management excellence and high-quality products and
services. These included:

- “Silver Award” in the “HKACE Customer Service
Excellence Award 2013 - Grand Award” from the Hong
Kong Association for Customer Service Excellence

- “Hong Kong Service Awards 2014 - Quality Living
Category (Jewellery and Gold)” from “East Week
Magazine”

- “2013 Outstanding Quality Tourism Services Merchant
Award — Bronze Award (Jewellery & Watches)” from the
Quality Tourism Services Association

- “Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong
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Product Design

Rt

Producing the finest products, with stylish and fashionable
designs, is one of the core competencies of the Group. To
enhance innovation capabilities and expand our design team’s
horizon, we arrange overseas exchange for our design teams
from time to time to apply different design concepts on jewellery.
Our outstanding design teams are also keen on participating in
various local and international jewellery design competitions to
further strengthen Lukfook’s brand image.

During the year under review, our design pieces “Origin
of Symbiotic Harmony” and “My Golden Generation”
distinguished themselves from other participants at
the Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2014
under the Open Group and the Fashionable 18K

Gold Group respectively, and our design piece
“Joyful Tear” attained the “Best of Show Award

of Open Group” at the “15th Hong Kong
Jewellery Design Competition”.

HRERERE RAFTERHNERRD
AEBEBEB-—BZLBFN BFER
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Quality Assurance
B=1RE

The Group exercises strict quality control and is

meticulous from raw materials procurement, production

to after-sales services. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory

Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,

was established for the purpose of providing services

including authentication and grading of diamonds,

authentication of jadeite jade and coloured gemstones,

and quality assessment for jewellery. The Laboratory

is operated by a group of experienced and certified

gemologists who specialise in the authentication of

gemstones and jadeite jade, and it conducts tests on

over 100,000 pieces of jewellery and gemstones annually.

The Laboratory passed the ISO 17025 in Jadeite Jade Authentication

and Diamond Testing and Grading accredited by the Hong Kong Accreditation
Service, making it the only subsidiary laboratory of a local jewellery retailer to
obtain both accreditations.

It also met the ISO 9001: 2008 Quality Management Systems Requirements,
demonstrating a professional quality assurance system and dedication to quality products.

During the year under review, the Group has been authorised by the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of
China to use the “Natural Jadeite” mark approved by the State Administration for Industry and Commerce.
Consumers may use the mark to make online enquires or phone enquiries on the authentication of the natural
jadeite purchased, thus strengthening consumers’ confidence in the Group and further enhancing our brand
competitiveness.

In addition, the Group’s jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou, passed ISO 9001 Quality
Management Systems Requirements for its international level quality assurance system and professionally
recognised product quality standard.

AEEHREERIEHE  ARVHARE EEUNEERRBY —HFTE - ER1996FK L2 E B AR —F
EREHETTO RHELET TR BRLBECEAECEMAKRELEEFEERS - ZH 0B —BHEMK
EEONSERETHNERRIVELETMELE  BFETRI100000KERER - ZP O N A MKETE
BHEENBLKEE PO - —HESFERARREREISO 17025352 i 7F K # 4 BB &1 R R 8 M
HRENEEPD -

B5h - eh L IREAISO 9001  2008R BB RHMER - REANEENSUREFFEHAEAFT  BH
NIREBEERHRD -

REBEFEAN  AEBERNESHITPRRELTOLENHTERS | RELERIHTREREBILEZMNO X
RER | ZAPZ - HEEURERS ETHEKSHAREEHAAMBESRE AR APERBEBEEHA
SENEL  mEBF NG E— TR -

FHh REBERREMNTEDRAOIREINTHETEISO V01 REEERSN AR EEEMERERSNR
mEERECEBRBRKFLEEXRAA -

Annual Report 2014 £ 27



Branding Awards
Tl NES

Lukfook enhances its brand recognition through extensive
brand-building alongside its high-quality jewellery and
customer service, and these efforts have resulted in
numerous awards over the years. These included:

- “Hong Kong Top Brand Awards 2013” - “Hong Kong
Top Brand Ten Year Achievement Award” jointly
organised by Hong Kong Brand Development Council
and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong

- “Brand of the Year — Retail” of the JNA Awards 2013
from Jewellery News Asia and UBM Asia

- “Top 10 Retailers in the Hong Kong Market” and “2013
Best-of-the-Best Retailers Award - Hong Kong” in
“2013 Retail Asia-Pacific Top 500 Awards”

iy
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“Top 10 — Comprehensive Strength (Medium
Enterprises)” in the “Top 100 Hong Kong Listed
Companies Selection 2013”

“Hong Kong Star Brands Award 2013 — Enterprise”
from the Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association

“The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards 2013” by
“Capital Weekly” Magazine

“Judging Panel — High Potential Corporate Brand” at
the “Prestigious Corporate Brand Awards 2013” jointly
organised by Ming Pao and the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, Master of Science Programme in Marketing

“My Favourite Jewelry Award” by Darizi Magazine

“Perfect Wedding Jewellery Award” by COSMO Bride
Magazine

S0 [2018% E & % £ 2 78 K100
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TrEEEEE

Adhering to its commitment to repay the community, the
Group has actively supported a variety of charity and
community programmes, and it continues to work hand in
hand with its staff to fulfil the corporate social responsibility
and make meaningful contributions to society.

Besides being named a “Caring Company” by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service, the Group received other
recognitions that affirm its continued efforts in corporate
social responsibility. Below are some highlights:

- A charitable donation to the “Tung Wah Charity Gala
201837, held by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

- Title sponsorship of “The 2013 Sedan Chair Race &
Bazaar”, held by the Sedan Chair Charities Fund

- “Enterprise-Merit Award” in the 4th “Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award”

- First Runner-up — “Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization
Category)” in the “Oxfam Rice Sale 2013”

- A donation of 300kg rice to “Food Angel” for its food
rescue and assistance programme. Lukfook Volunteer
Team also arrived at “Food Angel” in person to help
preparing and distributing the meal boxes to the needy

- Title sponsorship of “Lukfook Jewellery Presents: Yan Oi
Charity Concert” organised by Yan Oi Tong

- Sponsorship of “Karen Cheung and Joe Ma’s 20th
Wedding Anniversary Charity Dinner”

|
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
BEKRE

The Group strives to be a green enterprise and incorporates
relevant strategies in every aspect of its business. The
Group’s jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou
attained certification as an ISO 14001: 2004 Environmental
Management System, demonstrating its effective, efficient
and environmentally friendly manufacturing process. In
addition, the Group implemented sustainable initiatives in
areas such as energy saving, waste management and carbon
reduction into its manufacturing, administration and daily retail
operations.

The Group has been promoting the use of electronic
corporate communication to replace printed materials. During
the year under review, the Group successfully reduced
the number of printed annual report copies by half which
further reduced the paper consumption to save the Earth’s
resources.

The Group has received numerous awards in recognition of
its continuous dedication to environmental protection. These
included:

- Consecutively named the “Prime Awards for Eco-
Business” — “Eco Jewellery Corporation” from metroBox
Magazine
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Luk Fook Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee
Fook Diamond & Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited
received the following awards respectively:

- Titled “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partners (Manufacturing)” by the Environment Bureau of
Hong Kong and the Economic & Information Technology
Commission of Guangdong Province

- Passed the cleaner production audit of Guangzhou City
and attained the honour of “Excellence Enterprise of
National Cleaner Production Audit in Guangzhou”

- Won the “3 Years + Entrant and Green Participant” and
“Green Medal” respectively at the “Hang Seng Pan Pearl
River Delta Environmental Awards 2012/13
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HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

AT BERERE

We strongly believe that people are our most valuable
asset and significant competitive advantage. Accordingly,
developing the engagement and professionalism of its
staff and retaining high-calibre talent are the Group’s key
strategies for continuous business growth. In order to
achieve its vision and strategic priorities, and to provide
excellent and consistent services, the Group provides
comprehensive training programmes for various levels of
experience and expertise. In addition to our Hong Kong head
office, four regional training centres have been established in
Beijing, Shanghai, Wuhan and Nansha, and tailored training
programmes have been implemented for staff. Ensuring
sustainable staff development amidst a rapidly changing
world, the Group also encourages and sponsors employees
to participate in professional training programmes held by
international institutes and the “Qualifications Framework
(QF)” test conducted by the Education Bureau of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), which aim to help
people further enhance their competitiveness and expand
their capacity through continuous learning.

During the year under review, the Group was awarded the
“Manpower Developer” again by the Employees Retraining
Board.

At the same time, the Group attaches great importance to the
holistic development and welfare of staff through introducing
clear promotion mechanisms and incentive schemes. In
addition, the Group endeavours to optimise the staff benefit
programmes to strengthen their individual development and
build their sense of belonging.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’
value and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company
is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard and endeavors to ensure that its businesses are
conducted in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2014,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear
division of responsibilities for the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from
the Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung being the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company will further enhance the business development of
the Group in the Mainland China market due to the norms
in the Mainland China market on “status parity” when future
business negotiations are conducted in Mainland China.
Besides, members of the Board also include qualified
professionals and other prominent and experienced
individuals from our community. The Board considers that
the existing Board composition, with the support of Board
Committees and two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance
of power and authority.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware
of any information that would reasonably indicate that the
Company is not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31
March 2014, in compliance with the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed
that all directors have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31
March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Board Composition
The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
four non-executive directors and five independent
non-executive directors. They include persons with a
wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry,
accountancy profession, general trading, securities
industry and banking industry. It has a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The current composition of the
Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
(Re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 6 June 2014)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. FOK Kwong Man

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP
(Appointed on 20 August 2013)

The biographical details of the directors are set out in
the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 52 to 63 of this Annual
Report.

EFETESERXS

RATEHEMN ETARBEEI0EH 2 (L™
BOTAESTETEFRINEESTAD ([12
3]  ERERETESFR G IRTE
Al- &M BESEDARBERE  BEHE
R rEEENEE2014F38318 ILFE
*E@—rhﬁg—rH'Jﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬁ']&ﬁ%ﬁi%

ETEFRRX D 2R TEL -
EEE
() EEEER
EEeRNAORRTES WAF
HTESRARBILIFRTESAK
ETEERKETE @5 EX - —
RES BHRITEMMITEREZE

BREBRZAL TAGBHEARRRXE
GRS ZABRERER -REEF
SREFHIWT

BOTESE

REWEE (FERITHAAL)
HmE L (BIEE)
IFrnBrt

E%‘ﬁ u‘fﬁj:
fEE K+

JEMTTES

BRI E (FEE)
(R2014F6 H6H B 31 772E FFFIT
BIHTEE)

BEKR LT

AR KL

2 EMHA S 0+

BIUAENTES
BERLE
S BGBSA T4+
EEXEAE
BoRHBREHE
HABEAFHL
(201348 H20H #Z (T)

EEBEEFBRIENAFRFEAESR

EREEENSEBERAB ZBEFE]
—ffe

Annual Report 2014 3R 35



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

flsg=S

;LI/_/\-/\—\

/D#&m

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EET @)

(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees (i) EEE®H ZEHEFERBEKX
and General Meetings BZHERLE
The attendance records of the individual directors at ERZEEREH Z2014F3A31HILFE
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, BITI7EEEEE B ié\é\ R
Remuneration Committee and general meetings for the RBELZEees FHEEeeH
year ended 31 March 2014 are set out as follows: REXEg 2 HETHEHINET :

No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ STEERE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee = Committee ~ Committee General

Directors EEx EEg ENZET REZAT FHZRAT RRAEXE

Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung HERLE 6/6 N/AR R 3/3 3/3 11

(Chairman & Chief Executive) (Note 1) (TEETHEH) (1)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen AREEE 66  NATER 3/3 3/3 1
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (28 (H##2)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung IrBat 56 NARER  NATER  NATER 1/1

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEART 66  NATEE  NATEBR  NATER 1/1

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEALL 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATiE A N/AT A 11

Non-executive Directors FRITES

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEELE 56 NARER  NATER  NATER 1

(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) (BIZE) (H#3)

(Re-designated from Executive Director (Ro01456 76 A AT E

to Non-executive Director on 6 June 2014)  FHBHHTEE)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BELLT 6/6  NATHERE  NATER  NATER 1/1
Mr. HUI King Wai BB E

(Retired on 20 August 2013) (R201348520HEfF) 71 NAMER NANER NARER NATER

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SFRAATAT 56 NARER  NATER  NATER 11

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP FEUEMHA TS 66  NATEE  NATEBR  NATER 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTEES

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Note 4) BEREL N4 1 1/1 1/1 11 NATER

(Retired on 20 August 2013) (20136720 £ fF)

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander (Note 5) BB R L4 (#/725) 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 1/1

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP EHBGBSATHT 6/6 33 3/3 3/3 1/1

Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Note 6) EREEE(H#6) 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 1

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin EXREE 6/6 3/3 3/3 3/3 11

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP (Note 7)  EEXFaL (#/i27) 4/4 1/1 1/1 1 NATER

(Appointed on 20 August 2013) (F2019F8A20A EZ(E)

Notes: PEE -

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the Company 1. HEFHEB2013F8A20A REFE BA QA
with effect from 20 August 2013. e

2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the 2. HmE L EB2013F8HA20F BEEFEAAKRR A
Company with effect from 20 August 2013. aa'JIV

3. Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of 3. HIOEBE L £ A2013F8 H20R R EE R AR A A
the Company with effect from 20 August 2013. BlEE -

4. Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond ceased to be the Chairman of the Audit 4. EHFRATEE2013F8A20A BT BETERE
Committee and the Nomination Committee as well as a member of the gL eXRULTMEESKE -
Remuneration Committee with effect from 20 August 2013.

5. Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander was appointed as the Chairman of the 5. BB R L L H2013F8A20B REZ T ABA R A
Nomination Committee with effect from 20 August 2013. REEZEBGERE-

6. Mr. FOK Kwong Man was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit 6. EE XA EBE2013F8A20H L EZ T A AR A
Committee with effect from 20 August 2013. BEREEBGERE -

7. Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina was appointed as a member of each of the 7. B BELZ + H2013F8A20H R EZ T BA R A
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee EZLZET REZESLFWEESZKE -
of the Company with effect from 20 August 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership
of the Company within a framework of prudent and
effective controls which enables risk to be assessed
and managed. The Board controls the business but
delegates day-to-day responsibility to the executive
management. The Board sets the Company’s
strategic aims, values and standards and ensures
that its obligations to its shareholders and others are
understood and met. In the interests of the Company,
a number of matters are reserved by the Board.
Certain matters are the subject of recommendations
by the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee or
Remuneration Committee. The company secretary,
referring to the list of reserved matters for the Board,
assists the Chairman in establishing the agenda of
Board meetings. Each director may also request
inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board
or Committee meetings are open for inspection by the
directors. The executive management is responsible for
the daily operations and administration function of the
Company.

Directors are provided with appropriate and
adequate information to enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company.

Every director is continuously reminded of the
requirement to keep abreast of his responsibility as a
director of the Company, with reference to the Listing
Rules and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 inclusive,
and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. The
Board gives clear directions to management as to the
matters that must be approved by the Board before
decisions are made on behalf of the Company.

The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee were formed with specific
written terms of reference that deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties. Such terms of
reference are made available to the public.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board
reviewed corporate governance disclosures in the 2013
annual report and the 2013/14 interim report, reviewed
and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive directors and affirmed the Board’s view
over their independence, reviewed and discussed the
induction and continuous development programs for the
directors of the Company, and reviewed the policies and
practices on corporate governance, and the compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements of the Company.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

38

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors
The Company confirms that the Board has received

from each of the independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Mr. FOK Kwong Man, Mr. MAK Wing
Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina an annual
confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having taken into
account the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors, considered that all independent
non-executive directors are independent.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Board has at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise
and the requirements under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of the independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive
professional training programs arranged by the
Company during their terms of appointment covering
the topics of corporate governance, update on the
Listing Rules and other regulatory development at the
expense of the Company. Directors were encouraged by
the Company to participate in the relevant continuous
professional training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The company has also arranged
for consultants to provide training programs. The
average training hours of the directors were not less
than 11 hours.

EEgwm

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued) (viii EERNIBEER (|

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
arranged seminars covering regulatory development
on environmental, social and governance report and
information security and data privacy, and product
knowledge on jadeites and diamonds. Directors’ training
records during the year are summarized as follows:

HE2014F3A31HILFE KRR E
BOZRIMTE REBRBIRE
EREARENEELTEREBELE
EFEHRZ2BE URBEBAHRLER
EmM#E TR EE0EIEEH
T

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FREERR EFFEIMEDR
Directors EE H ft 45 B o RE A% 3 1|
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BERELE v
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (EEFTHAEE)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmerE v
(Deputy Chairman) = EF:P)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung InGrt v
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BB v
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping EEkL T v
Non-executive Directors EBTEE
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEEAAE %
(Deputy Chairman) = EF:P)
(Re-designated from Executive Director (R2014F6 F6HAHTE E
to Non-executive Director on 6 June 2014) BIEBHNTEE)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERLT v
Mr. HUI King Wai BB N/AT 8 A
(Retired on 20 August 2013) (201398 F20H R F)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRARTHLT v
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP FEWMHA F 4L %
Independent Non-executive Directors BUERTES
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond EHRLE N/AT i F
(Retired on 20 August 2013) (R2013%F8F20H R F)
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander HER L %
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP EHBERSATHL v
Mr. FOK Kwong Man EEXRHE v
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BXBRAE %
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BELRERTHLT %
(Appointed on 20 August 2013) (R2013F8520HEZ (F)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of its
strategy and in the achievement of its objectives and ensures
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
the Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and
reliable information. The Chief Executive is delegated with
the authority and responsible for running the Company’s
business, implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving
business objectives. Both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive positions are currently held by Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, an executive director. The Board believes that the
current governance structure, with a combined Chairman and
Chief Executive and a vast majority of non-executive directors
provides an effective balance of power and authority for
the management of the Company in the best interest of the
Company at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee for overseeing the respective
aspects of the Group’s affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February
1999 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. FOK
Kwong Man with four other members namely, Mr. TAI
Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
(appointed on 20 August 2013), all of whom being the
independent non-executive directors. In compliance
with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, majority of
the members possess appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discuss and review,
inter alia, the interim and annual financial statements,
the submission and publication of the interim and annual
reports, the disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report, the Corporate Governance and compliance
status of the Code and the internal audit plan and
functions of the Group.

The Company believes a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the
effective functioning of an audit committee. The Board
is responsible for selecting appropriate accounting
policies and the preparation of the financial statements.
The external auditors are responsible for auditing
and attesting to the Group’s financial statements and
evaluating the Group’s system of internal controls, to
the extent that they consider necessary to support their
audit report. The Audit Committee is responsible for
overseeing the entire process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

o reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board for approval;

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or external
auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

o approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor and making
recommendation on the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of the external auditor;
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(i)
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Audit Committee (Continued)

° reviewing the internal audit programme and
ensuring the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and effective, and considering any major
findings of internal control matters; and

o reviewing the financial control, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group and
ensuring the management has discharged its
duty to have an effective internal control system,
in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

As at 31 March 2014, the arrangement for employees
and stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. TAI
Kwok Leung, Alexander, being an independent non-
executive director, with six other members namely, Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Mr. FOK Kwong Man, Mr. MAK Wing
Sum, Alvin, and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina (appointed
on 20 August 2013), majority of whom being the
independent non-executive directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held three
meetings to nominate candidates for directorship
according to their skills, knowledge and experience
etc, assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, review and make recommendation
to the Board on the structure, size and composition of
the Board, and to review the retirement and rotation
plan of the directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company. In considering her appointment, the
Nomination Committee assessed the candidate and
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, independent
mindedness, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out her duties and responsibilities
effectively, independence under the requirement of the
Listing Rules, etc. and made recommendation to the
Board for approval.

The principal role and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee mainly include giving full
consideration to succession planning for directors
and senior management, identifying individual
suitably qualified to become Board members and
assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors. In order to achieve a balanced
and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition, including the skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience, of the Board,
and advising the Board as to any changes that may be
required. The Nomination Committee has the authority
given by the Board to seek external professional advice
in the selection and recommendation for directorship,
if necessary, to fulfil the requirements for professional
knowledge and industry experience of any proposed
candidates.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at
Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. As such, the Company adopted
a board diversity policy during the year. In achieving a
truly diverse Board, candidates with different talents,
skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a
range of diversity perspectives. The ultimate decision
is based on merit and contribution which would be
brought by the candidates to the Board if he/she was
selected as a director. The Nomination Committee is of
the view that the current composition of the Board has
achieved the objectives set in the above board diversity

policy.
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(iii)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, being an independent non-
executive director, with six other members namely,
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr.
TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. FOK Kwong Man, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
(appointed on 20 August 2013), majority of whom being
the independent non-executive directors.

The principal role and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee mainly include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy, structure and packages for all remuneration
of directors and senior management; reviewing and
approving performance based remuneration and
the terms of service contracts of the directors and
senior management; reviewing and approving the
compensation payable in connection with any loss or
termination of office or appointment of directors and
senior management; overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the
Company or the Group; and reviewing the on-going
appropriateness of the remuneration policy. No director
or senior management was involved in the determination
of his/her own remuneration package.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings
during the year to review the policies for determining
annual salary increments for the calendar year 2014,
to approve the payment of the discretionary year-end
bonus for 2013 and a performance bonus scheme for
all non-sales employees working at the Head Office. The
remuneration committee also assessed the performance
of the executive directors and senior management for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of the
senior management by band during the year are set out
in note 16 to the financial statements on pages 133 to
136 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, were
as follows:

% S 6 B &
ERINEZHATE RGBS TR AT (R
XA BB RIERTRE S D
M

2014 2013

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THET FAT

Audit services FHiH IR 4,064 3,813

Non-audit services IEEE R

— Review service - B R 354 328

- Tax related service — T 75 18 B AR 75 236 74

— Financial and tax - RS ERES 1,900 -

diligence and deal advisory kXRS5

Total BET 6,554 4,215

The responsibilities of external auditor with respect to financial S NEZHEIRMERE T EmZ2BE @ SR 5

reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of each financial period, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
as at the end of the financial period and of the result and
cash flows of the Group for the year. In the Company’s
interim and annual reports which are issued within the time
limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board presents
a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects. The
published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’
interest and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee,
with the assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system. The Head of the Internal Audit Team directly reports
to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines
for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit
Committee established by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules has clear terms of reference.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary undertook over
15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance
on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of
business record, and the compliance with Company’s policies
and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems, and to ensure
achievement of the Company’s objectives.

The Audit Committee has received the internal control
evaluation report submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The
report summarised information relating to the work carried out
in the following areas:

e the results of selective testing of internal control
procedures, assets, and financial records of the Company;

e a general evaluation of internal control system installed by
the Company; and

e an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during
the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the
internal control system has been adequately executed by the
Internal Audit Team and the Audits Committee acknowledged
that the management has been progressively implementing
an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Audit
Committee has also recommended to further extend the
system to cover risks protection aspect in order to safeguard
the assets of the Company.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken
by the Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the
Company’s management and reporting functionally to the
Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorized to
obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit
work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the
Internal Audit Team. Internal control reviews are arranged
regularly while paying close attention to business or operation
changes. Regular audit tests are carried out to ensure key
controls are in operation. The Internal Audit Team conducts
other projects and investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with
respective department heads to have actions agreed and
subsequently followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory
control is maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary
of the internal audit activities and audit results are also
submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a

Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a special general meeting (“SGM”) to
be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must state
the purposes of the SGM, and (i) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of
three months from the said date of deposit of the requisition.
A SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM
to be convened by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Procedures for putting forward proposal at
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, either any number of shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (i) give to shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (ii) circulate to shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company (contact
details are disclosed in section headed “Corporate
Information”) with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in
case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose
for election as a director is posted on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation
in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official
website serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the
Company’s business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for
voting by poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures
compliance with the requirements regarding voting by poll
contained in the Listing Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary at
the Company’s business address in Hong Kong at Luk Fook
Jewellery Centre, No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make proposals at the
general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March
2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of
a variety of gold and platinum jewellery, gold ornaments and
gem-set jewellery.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year by operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 74.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.63
per ordinary share, totalling HK$371,138,000 which was paid
on 20 December 2013.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.638 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2014 (20183:
HK$0.48 per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 26 August 2014.
Taking into account of the interim dividend payment, the total
dividend for the year would amount to HK$1.268 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$746,989,000 for the year (2013: HK$0.86
per ordinary share, totalling HK$506,633,000). Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 20
August 2014, the final dividend will be paid on or around 3
September 2014,

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,159,000 (2013: HK$1,791,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2014,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted
to HK$1,102,278,000 (2013: HK$957,819,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the
last five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:

Bz &
AR R AN 2 B B R SR B RS RN R
29 -

A ¢ 53 ik G 08
BRIBEBRERBETE - AR AN201453
A318 2 A #t 2 & & # &1,102,278,000/%8
7T (20134 : 957,819,000 7T ) °
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51) (E71) (EH)
Results ¥
Revenue A 19,214,930 13,411,691 11,907,440 8,091,121 5,386,432
Profit attributable to equity AR FHEZEEHA A
holders of the Company &5 % 7 1,864,928 1,242,951 1,355,523 879,989 518,554
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets BEE 9,586,156 7,561,875 6,738,461 4,281,699 2,596,655
Total liabilities BEE 1,887,001 1,084,282 1,094,179 823,311 913,168
Shareholders’ funds BRES 7,640,769 6,424,748 5595524 3,423,681 1,660,542

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Save as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year.

MA HEXROES

FAARLRRILEE D EERA AR - BB ®R
KM 20 WBEEIN  FARARAHELM
B 8 1 B3 R A Bk B AR R BHERIAXAD e

50 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HRAS]



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
(Re-designated from Executive Director
to Non-executive Director on 6 June 2014)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai (Retired on 20 August 2013)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Retired on 20 August 2013)

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. FOK Kwong Man

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP (Appointed on 20 August 2013)

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company. Accordingly,
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. LI Hon Hung and Mr. TAI Kwok
Leung, Alexander shall retire from office by rotation at the
AGM. Pursuant to Bye-laws 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Ms.
WONG Yu Pok, Marina who was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 20 August 2013
shall hold office until the AGM and shall be eligible for re-
election at the AGM. All the retiring directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of the
proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular
sent together with this Annual Report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 63, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Group. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong has over 47 years of
experience in the jewellery industry and is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and management of the Group.
He is a member of the Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the Associate Director of The Kowloon Gold
Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary
Permanent Chairman of Hong Kong Jade Association,
Chairman of Supervisory Committee of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, the Honorary Chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman of the First
General Committee of Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade
Industry’s Association, the Honorary Vice-president of the
Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers' Association as well as the President of Hong
Kong Precious Metals Traders Association Limited. He is also
the elected member of General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Company and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy,
Executive Director and Business Manager of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 63, is the co-founder of the
Group. Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive
Director and Deputy General Manager of the Group. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He has over 41 years of experience
in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising, operation and administration of the Group’s
retail shops and the production in Mainland China. Mr. Tse is
an executive committee member of the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a supervisory committee
member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society,
the Vice-Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones,
Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, the
Life Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries
and Commerce Association Limited, the Vice President of
the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee,
the Honorary President of the 32nd session of Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Junior Police Call, a Vice Chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary President of the Cheung
Ching Friends Association, the Director of Hong Kong,
Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoqing Friendship Association, a
member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council Jewellery
Advisory Committee, the Honorary President of Tsuen Wan
Community Committee for Celebration of Reunification of
Hong Kong with China, the Vice President of Zhaoqging
Overseas Friendship Association and Honorary Consultant of
Shatin Friends Society and Executive Committee Member of
Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association. Moreover,
Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation
for Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong
SAR.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 41, is the Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Group. She initially joined
the Group in 1994 and has served various departments
including the Operations Department for about 7 years
until 2002. Ms. Wong rejoined the Group in 2004 to serve
the Administration & Human Resources Department and is
responsible for the development and operation management
for the Group’s business and co-ordinates human resources
management and training of the Group. She holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from University of Southern
Queensland. Besides, Ms. Wong is a member of the Liaison
Committee of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee and the Honorary Life President of Hong Kong
Pun Yue Industrial and Commercial Fellowship Association.
She has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 33, is the Executive
Director and Business Manager of the Group. She joined the
Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also
responsible for the execution of the Group’s marketing
policies. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada and a Master’s
Degree of Science in China Business Studies from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified Public
Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Wong worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing
and accounting assignments for a variety of business
organizations including listed companies. She received the
GIA Diamond Graduate title in 2007. She at present is a
Co-opted Member of the Marketing Activities Committee of
the Quality Tourism Services Association. Ms. Wong is the
daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director and the sister of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 44, is the Executive Director
and Senior Product Development Manager of the Group.
She has over 26 years of experience in the jewellery industry.
She joined the Group in 1990 and is mainly responsible for
product development, jewellery purchasing, wholesaling and
retailing business of the Group. Ms. Chung frequently visits
jewellery exhibitions worldwide for product discovery and
sourcing of the finest jewellery and jewellery parts for the
Group. In 2001, Ms. Chung won the Best of Show Award for
her design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition. She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title
in 2004. Ms. Chung is the Executive Committee Member of
Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 37, is the Deputy
Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Group. He was
re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director on 6 June 2014 upon his appointment as the Chief
Executive Officer of China Gold Silver Company Limited, an
associated company of the Company which conducts the
jewellery retail and franchise business under the brandname
of “3D-Gold” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. He
joined the Group as the Operations Manager in 2002. Mr.
Danny Wong is an active participant in the community and
is currently a Standing Committee member for Sihui County,
Guangdong Province, of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference; Permanent President of Sze Wui
and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong)
Limited; a supervisory committee member of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association and Honorary President of Junior
Police Call of Kwai Tsing District. In December 2008, Mr.
Danny Wong received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is
the son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director and the elder brother
of Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and
Business Manager of the Company.

EEREEERBABZEEHES
(#8)

BITESE (W)

EERkEL 45 BAAEEZHTES
NERBESHEE - HRN19904F & in A A
S8 NHREEHBBA0TLER 28
EEEERFE HE HERTEEK-
EUITRFIHASHOKEREETE
R AAEEEESEENHKEGHRENT
B o 20014 » SER T ATRETER [ ETE]
FOFEF_EBEAURBERFTELERE - HFR
2004 ¥ EXGIA Diamonds Graduatef$7 38 °
BErTARAGAIRcREMEmgE
BEE o

FERITESE
WEEEKE Q7 ARKEZEIEENIE
HITES  HE201456 A6 ER T AT H
SIREEBRAR (AR ZHBERR MU
(2B | REERS  BFAMPERNBRE
KEEMTERFARE CER) 21THE
HE ARTEEATEIFERTES - FR
2002F MAARKE BEELIE - FEELE
BR2EdRES  HREAPEARBUA
WEEERUENLZEERL AANCRE
AHeAERAFKEER  LEKXKALHRS
REMENCESREERLFENEES
& ° R2008F 12 7 + &= /& B8 % &£ TR E IGIA
Diamond Graduatefij38 - I AARNEBR X E -
THBHEERNTEEERELEZRT T
RBEARNTRTEETREBRLBEERFTL LT Z
5 o

Annual Report 2014 £ 55



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 47, is the co-founder
of the Group. Ms. Yeung has over 26 years of experience
in public relations. Ms. Yeung was the winner of Miss Hong
Kong and Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the
4th Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988.
Ms. Yeung was also the President of the Wai Yin Association
for the year 1995-1996. She received the GIA Diamonds
Graduate title in 2005.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 67, joined the Group in
1997. He was re-designated from Independent Non-executive
Director to Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 October 2011, owing to changes in factors concerning
his independence. Mr. Hui was then resigned both as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of
the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Hui has 43 years
of experience in the securities and investment industry.
Mr. Hui had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Director of the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member
of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and
Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform, a member of the Committee on
Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and also an appointed member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Investigation Panel A. Mr. Hui was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2004
and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in 2006. He had also been a member of
Government “Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal
Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui
also serves as Independent Non-executive Director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 0388),
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711),
Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited (Stock Code:
0908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1668) and SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 2386) whose shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP, aged 57, has been appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 October
2011. Mr. Li holds a Diploma of Architectural Design from
Humber College of Toronto, Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s
of Architecture from New York Institute of Technology. Mr.
Li was awarded the Certificate of Registration Authorized
Person (List of Architects) by the Government of the HKSAR
in 1989. In professional qualification aspect, Mr. Li is a
Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and a Member
of Architect Registration Board and Royal Institute of British
Architects. He also got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect
Qualification. Mr. Li has extensive architecture experience
and is a Director of Li & Siu Associates Ltd and A. Li &
Associates Architects Ltd. In addition, he is a Director of
Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. Li was appointed as a District
Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000 to
2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation
For Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also
appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of
the Peace in 2008. Mr. Li has been appointed to various
positions over the years including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Office (East Liaison Team), Chairman of Sham Shui
Po District Fire Safety Committee, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
Council for the Promotion of Cultural and Recreation Service
Limited, Vice-chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fight Crime
Committee, Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Junior Police
Call, Honorary President of Kowloon City District Junior Police
Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents Association
Ltd, President of Police Dragon Boat Club, President of
HK General Tai Shan Clansmen Association Limited and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong
Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 56, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
July 2008 and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tai graduated from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce and Administration in 1982 and
became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. Tai has extensive
accountancy, corporate finance and investment experience
in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tai is an executive director
of Investec Capital Asia Limited (formerly known as Access
Capital Asia Limited), a licensed corporation under the SFO
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. Tai is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Anhui Conch Cement
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0914) which is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 62, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Ip graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a degree
of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently pursued further
studies in Oxford University and Harvard Business School.
Mr. Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November
1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served various
government departments. Mr. Ip was promoted to the
rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. Ip in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. Ip took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal
services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies
including matters relating to employment services, labour
relations and employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour, Mr. Ip was a member
of the Hong Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Authority Board, the Hong Kong International
Theme Parks Company Board as well as the Chairman of the
Logistics Development Council, Port Development Board,
Maritime Industry Council and Aviation Development Advisory
Committee. Mr. Ip retired from the Government of the HKSAR
in July 2007. Mr. Ip received the Gold Bauhinia Star award
from the Government of the HKSAR in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. Ip is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2340), Lai Sun Development Company Limited (Stock
Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1888) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

EEREEERBABZEEHES
(#&)

BIUFERTESE (|)
EHBGBSAEMT 625 BARAZE
VHRTEEZ FWEESERRERZ
BEeRIRVEEGIKE - &L EMI1973
FREBABHLEREBREE  HBQHF
BEREB R EERRE - EAEMNI973F
11AMAT BB EEBA > ME RS
ZEABRITEBFY « A EPI97FA4RATR
R4 > 199767 8 E2007F6 A KT H
BEITHRERNFEEER - ELELEH
THESERUCEERBREEEES S T1TE
ER LERRR (AIBLER) MHLEEL
BRE - ELEB2002F7 A1EBRHEIRE
BERLTIRRAR ELEREHE  EX
ENBRERBEAEESERE VYREE K
B RER C BSERBRTE  RERIRTE - BMFE AR
BEEBEEMEZ I EAETAEL TR
K OEBEENEEBRERERY  BEBEM
BEER EELBEULERERSTRH
BESHIEIEEHRBERR BHlERTRE
SHEEERBLE AR IELE LA RES
RKE  REBMRERR EBBO0EER
B BEMBERBEMELRERNEZED
FJE - ELEAN2007F7TAERBEREBE
BUAT IR B BT o B % A 2001 FEF B4R
TReERFEZESEAEE  RPR2007F7
AEZAAIFETAFHL EEERER
EEBERBERAE ER ETHERK
IR AR AR (BRHNRI - 1313) - &
EREEARAA (RMHMRIT - 2340) - BB
FERAR AT (RO 0488) REHE
HEERERAR AR (BRMHDAI - 1888) 2
BN IEITES ©

Annual Report 2014 £ 59



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. FOK Kwong Man, aged 64, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Fok obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Engineering from The University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Business Administration degree from
Columbia University, U.S.A. and Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and Master of Science (Statistics) degree from
Stanford University, U.S.A.

Mr. Fok has 26 years of experience with exchange operator
and securities regulatory bodies in Hong Kong and over 10
years in other financial services and China trade work. He
last served as the Chief Marketing Officer of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and retired in August 2012.
Mr. Fok had held various other senior positions in Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited including Head of Issuer
Marketing Division, Head of Business Development Division,
Head of Business Development and Investor Services Division
and Deputy Chief Operating Officer. He was the Chief
Executive of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
from 2000 to 2004 and had held other positions including
Senior Executive Director of Regulatory Affairs Group and
Executive Director of Listing Division before then. Mr. Fok
was Assistant Director of Corporate Finance of Securities and
Futures Commission from 1989 to 1992. Mr. Fok is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Nine Dragons Paper
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2689) and China Pacific
Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., (Stock Code: 2601) which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 61, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the University of
Toronto with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is
a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
After working in Citibank for over 26 years, Mr. Mak retired
on 1 May 2012. He last served as the Head of Markets and
Banking for Citibank Hong Kong, being the country business
manager for corporate and investment banking business. Mr.
Mak had also held various other senior positions in Citibank
including Head of Global Banking responsible for managing
all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also managed the
bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business, regional asset
management business and was the Chief Financial Officer of
North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. Mak was an
audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for eight years, five of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. Mak is an Independent Non-executive Director of L.T.
Limited (Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock
Code: 1137) and Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315)
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 65, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company on 20 August
2013. Ms. Wong had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers
for over 30 years specializing in the Mainland China tax and
business advisory services. Since 1978, she was responsible
for the development of the firm’s business in the Mainland
China. Ms. Wong joined Tricor Services Limited as a director
from 2004 to 2006 after her retirement as a partner from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004. Ms. Wong is the Chairman
of The Applied Research Council, a member of Lump Sum
Grant Independent Complaints Handling Committee and a
member of Advisory Committee on Social Work Training and
Manpower Planning. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Wong is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683) and Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636), which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and an independent director of China World
Trade Center Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Senior Management

Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 65, is the co-founder and has
become the Group General Manager since 2007. Mr. Au is
responsible for overall administration of the Group. He has
over 42 years of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong
Kong.

Ms. CHAN So Kuen, aged 54, has been appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group
since September 2012. Ms. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University (the
United States of America), with a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. She is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan had been
the Director of Finance and the Deputy Chairman of the Board
of Directors & Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for approximately three
and four years respectively during the period from 2003 to
2010. Ms. Chan has substantial management experiences
in auditing, financial management, corporate finance and
general management in vast varieties of businesses including
audit firm, travel, property development, hotel investment
and management, household appliances trading and
manufacturing, semiconductor and retail industries for more
than 28 years. Ms. Chan is responsible for the overall financial
management, corporate finance, investor relations and
company secretarial matters of the Group.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 52, is the Deputy Financial
Controller of the Group. Ms. Wong joined the Group in
1997. She is mainly responsible for accounting, finance and
tax planning matters of the Group. Ms. Wong often travels
to Mainland China in search of information on national
tax policies and privileges in order to develop relevant tax
plans for the Group. She has over 28 years of experience in
financial and accounting for commercial firms.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are
set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM have service contracts with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party, and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) which (a) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
to be notified to the Company and the Exchange:

l. Long positions in shares and underlying
shares of the Company:

EENESCHEREKE

MR2014F3A31H B TITXHEEIN AR
RIZEENEZTHABMER AR SR
*a BEE(EEREFRNPBERI(TESFR
HAE R ]) SBXVER) 2 B% 5 ~ B RE
%%’EP%?E( )*E?ffmﬁﬁﬁﬂ 5 {5 5] E535215 R
TE /AR ER RZ 1K Fﬁz_ Bl sk iR L
MAREZESZETESFRZINZESTRNAEMN
SARNBI MBS AR

L FOAFERGREMBKRBZGE :

Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
EEfta f_§-3 DN R EENEE REERA ER8E GRHBESL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 4,419,561 384,000 242,820,176 1,511,050 249,134,787 (L) 42.29%
BEREEAE note (a) note (b) note (d)
Hit(a) Hi 5 (o) M)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 302,344 242,820,176 243,122,520 (L) 41.27%
HMERE note (c)
Bi13E(c)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 370,000 1,611,050 1,881,050 (L) 0.32%
HERLE note (d)
()
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 10,000 10,000 (L) 0.002%
InExt
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 285,000 1,511,060 1,796,050 (L) 0.30%
BEREOT note (d)
M (d)
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 237,865 237,865 (L) 0.04%
BEALL
Mr. LI Hon Hung 682,437 682,437 (L) 0.12%
FEERE
(L) Long position L) F=
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

66

Long positions in shares and underlying

shares of the Company: (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 384,000
shares of the Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG’s
Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the
entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which controlled over one-third of the voting power
of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with
others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-half of
the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in
the Company.

In addition, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively
controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of
Dragon King Investment Ltd.. Accordingly. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
was deemed to be interested in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King
Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in
the Company.

In addition, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively
controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of
Dragon King Investment Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was
deemed to be interested in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King
Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung,
Danny, and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries
of the Trust. The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company
Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050 shares of
the Company.

EENESCHEREE ()

FOFIRMREMBGZGE:
(#8)

B 5 (a)

EiE %k 2 BB R 52 & £ 5 5384,000 4 A
AR -

Bt 5 (b)

EREFLEARERREER([ER) 222
AN ZEAAETSHARESTARRAAZHEE
TRAZERSERA A - EHINE (2R BRA A
BR=p2z—KREE BEFLEEREMAL
HE (EEesk M) 36l 5@ (ER) BR AR
B—HIRERE WA ARE (ER)BRAR]
1546 2234,185,672 AR R D R A i o

PN - FEEEEEEREMA TR (EEgHEE
) IR E IR EERARBB =D R EHE -
it EREEEAEREANEERERRAAG
528,634,504 AR BRI R A R o

Fff 5 (c)

FmEhEEREMA TR (B M) 2
FlNfE () BR AR BE— IR EE - Bt
HRERERRABRANEZER)BRARFAEZ
234,185,672 R AR RIR M P HEB S ©

pEoh - MBS AEBEREMA TR (EEKEE
H)EHREEREBRARBRA=-D 2 —RERE -
Eit #mErcEmBARESESREBRAARF
528,634,504 AR AIBE D R HE A A o

Bt 5 (d)

EEELALE ERILULT mARAERETG
ZrAEAZE2EIHEAN ZETAELHEKRE
STHERARZHERITRAZEREBA M
ZAEBIA1,511,050R AN A RIRD 2 E=HB A ©
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2014, save as disclosed below,
no person, other than a director or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

FERRRBRMRERKGZ
e

MR2014F3A31H ' R T X EE I AR
RAEENETEBETHAEBME  BARXRE
FERETETHABIN  BEEMATRER
AR REERGD T BEREBEESREE
1551 EXVER 52 & B35 ERAE LA [ AN 1A &) #
BB IKE -

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BEME &8 Biz®H 57 EaBa HERITERLL
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,849,022 (L) Beneficial Owner 246,669,198 (L) 41.87%
BRI 4 EREAA
242,820,176 (L) Controlled Corporation
(note (a)) SR
(Pt (@)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 (L) Beneficial Owner 245,498,266 (L) 41.67%
BERERE ExnEEA
242,820,176 (L) Controlled Corporation
(note (a)) SRl
(KiEE()
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 (L) Beneficial Owner 251,777,029 (L) 42.74%
(Deceased on 14 July 2011) EREAA
TR EE 245,406,800 (L) Controlled Corporation
(2011 F7 A14 B EHit) (note (a), (b) XEHEE
and (c))
(B 5E(a) ~ (o)
E(c))
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (L) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (L) 39.75%
R (R BRAA BB A
Templeton Asset Management Ltd. 58,603,407 (L) Investment Manager 58,603,407 (L) 9.95%

HEKE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FRBREME G RHE
e (|

BB 13 2

(Continued)

Number of Total

Name of Shareholder shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BRER &8 BRiZ®AE 313 HEHE ERFERLL
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note (d)) 512,506 (L) Beneficial Owner 41,764,077 (L) 7.09%
(P3E(d)) 37,729 (S) EnEAA 37,729 (S) 0.006%
41,113,571 (LP) 6.98%

138,000 (L) Investment Manager

REKE

41,113,571 (LP) Custodian

Cooperation/

Approved

Lending Agent

RENER/

ROERHREA
FIL Limited 36,199,000 (L) Investment Manager 36,199,000 (L) 6.14%

(L) Long position (S) Short position (LP) Lending pool
Note (a)

Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator of Mr. LEE Shu
Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and were deemed to
be interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the
Company.

In addition, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator
of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or
indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd.
and were deemed to be interested in 8,634,504 shares held by Dragon King
Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (b)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share
capital of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624
shares of the Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share
capital of Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000
shares of the Company.

Note (d)

JPMorgan Chase & Co., through various subsidiaries, had an interest in the
shares of the Company, of which 512,506 shares (long position) and 37,729
shares (short position) were held in its capacity as beneficial owner, 138,000
shares (long position) were held in its capacity as investment manager and
41,113,571 shares (long position) were held in its capacity as custodian
corporation/approved lending agent. These 41,764,077 shares (long position)
included the interests held in its capacity as beneficial owner, investment
manager and custodian corporation/approved lending agent.

BELE
LFE KA LP)AEERZBRA
Hi3E(e)

RELE BEELAERTHHLIANEEEREA &
EE M AT R (E k) 2458 (ER) AR A
Rl RE - BWEANNE (R BARAREA
#)234,185,6720 N A Bl B 15 A #E 2k o

oh RELE FEEEERFHIBEENEEER
A EREMALHAR (BERKRE) 2HEERES
BRARBB=Dz KRERE BRRAREERERR
A RIFFA #)8,634, 504 R AR R P EH = o

BT £ (o)

FRMEENBEEEEABRAETRLREARAASR
BWEEITRANII.3% MEFHRLIKEFR AR AF
630,624 AN A AR ©

B 5E(c)

FRHBALMEEEEARBESBLRERBRAA2
MEETRANS1%  MEFHRERERAFAFE
1,956,000/ A~ 2 & g 17

Ft 5E(d)

JPMorgan Chase & Co.i& i % [ M & 2 8l R AR 2 A7) ik
MHEE LS & P512,5068 5 (47 &) K&37,7290%
R CRB) NEREBAZHHFEA - 138,0008% i 5
(FR) AREKBZEHFE 41,113,571 K H (&
BYURENEE ZEEHEREAZEGES %%
41,764,077 ik h (IF B) BIEREUNEZHEA - RE
KB RRENEE TEEEREAZE NG 2w -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2014 as disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for
the year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as
follows:

i 3T 5

B1 7% 3R & MY EEG7 T 5% 7R A 4 B R 8L 22014
F3AGIALFEIVZEREATRS
B TR ETRRET 2 BERS -

ERELMERMOBRFENER
ZF &

ADE - AW EARAREERAAREFRE
A B P E 4 AT ST AT 223 - (A A RS 42
FE B 7R 20 B A (] B AR A LA 2 B oK
{35 T 15 7125 -

EBER
REBFER FEBEEEFAMEHER
ZEALMT :

2014 2013
The largest customer BAEF 1.8% 3.6%
Five largest customers combined hEEREFA 3.1% 5.1%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had interest in the major
customers noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

ERE BEIWRALREEEHAMAE
7R FI5%A b B AR 2 E B R - B
FREBEF 2% -

TEMERS
FR - AEBEFEHERNAEEEECRED
than T

2014 2013
The largest supplier A ER 27.6% 28.6%
Five largest suppliers combined hEERNEEEER 72.4% 72.1%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had interest in the major
suppliers noted above.

BREE REZMBALHBE=ZMAES
ARABRA EBRAZAEMBR  HEHE
Pt F B R 2 e

Annual Report 2014 3R 69



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of
the Group as at 31 March 2014 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions
against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company for the AGM will
be closed from 18 August 2014 to 20 August 2014, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM
to be held on 20 August 2014, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 15 August 2014.

The Register of Members of the Company for the final
dividend will also be closed on 26 August 2014 and no
transfer of shares will be registered on that day. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 25 August 2014.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. No director, or any of his
or her associates is involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors had an interest in any
business constituting competing business to the Group.

BITER BXRHEMER

MR2014F3AMB ZAEBRETER - EX
MEMEEFBHNYBEREW 34 -

BEBEHE
ADEZ A EMANL T E BB
ZRTE - EERERIE RS BRI ER S -

EEmERPBRER
MERBEBFREME + A2 A5 KR201445F
8H18H £2014F8A20H (BEEMABIEE
M) EERERNBFELFE AFAE
% HE B R2014F8 H208 1T 2 IR B A F
AEg FABFPXHERASEREREAR
20148 A158 T F4RF30D X EAR R Al 2
BARNBFPFELEEETREFLFETLER
NAE MU AEBETERKNERISIHA
MAL17HEI712-1716F

MARBBEMT » A2 HER2014F8AH
COHEFMERNDBFERLFE - BFEE
WREBRPKRE  FIBBPXHERBBRK
EHEAN2014F8H25H T F45305 &
EARNBZEERNDBPELETBRRE
(ERERRAA MUt ARBEFERFEAE
H1835E A MR L17HE1712-1716F ©

% il B 2R

AEBREZHFMBRILIENEE ZRR
BEREN BEF2FHaFMEEELS
EARBZEERE @ARNEERRLAE
EEmEEEN RS REE BMEEFNES
FEEABBAL2EETELRT 25 -

EENRERECHR

FA BEEFEEAREXBEREF 2
ERIRG TR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the public float of shares in the Company has
remained above the minimum percentage required by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014

RHORGIRE
RIBFADES 2 ABMARRBESFRA
REFRAE  AARARBZARHRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEN RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk
Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to
164, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Bk E (EHR) ARAFRE
(RERZZMELZBRLA])

Az BEm (LA TR T3] B | &R
Frazt164A N BEE (BR)BRAR(TE
RAEANDREWMBLAR (REIERE]) MR
BMBHRE  WFEREMBHRREERN2014
FIABHMGEAMAREERBEREARE
ZHLEFENGERBEGDR  SKEE2ERAR
R HERDEPRNESRERER N
REBSHBRMEREMBEEER

EFERGAMBEREARRY
Rt

EAmMEZARBERBEE B ASRM
MABBBBREENRFECRBGIDH
BERAERUESEMBERER  UHEAHB
BRELEEMATHRER  MEBERR
RER AP BRERAL B AREBIES] - DA
RAEMBHRR I FHEARAFFHERMER
M E AR

LM RE
BZHNECERERANEAH L SHREM
BHREAFHER  TEBARE(CAN-
FRER)FOMFERMERBBRRE - Kt
ZONRBERNEELME B o HFITERARK
ENARAEIMEMALTE EABEERNE
£

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LK BRI ERAT  BETRAFAEL —1##
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEN RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

=~ |:|\/
AR5 18k

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31H L FE

2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & THET FAT
(Restated)
(EH)
Note 2(a)
Bt 3E2(a)
Revenue A 6 19,214,930 13,411,691
Cost of sales 5 6 B AR 8 (15,000,776)  (10,581,660)
Gross profit EF 4,214,154 2,830,031
Other income H g A 7 107,510 106,507
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHEER 8 (1,923,385) (1,323,592)
Administrative expenses THER 8 (150,841) (124,760)
Other gains, net Hibzs - JF58 9 61,317 13,156
Operating profit il 2,308,755 1,501,342
Finance income B 75 U A 15,167 6,741
Finance costs % E A (2,844) (311)
Finance income, net BRBUWA - FRE 10 12,323 6,430
Share of results of an associate e —REE AR EE 21 (259) (1,020)
Profit before income tax B P15 75 B i A1) 2,320,819 1,506,752
Income tax expenses FriS &5 XX 11 (453,545) (260,342)
Profit for the year F R A 1,867,274 1,246,410
Profit attributable to: FE A 8 A
Equity holders of the Company RAGIERTEE A 12 1,864,928 1,242,951
Non-controlling interests JEE R M = 2,346 3,459
1,867,274 1,246,410
Earnings per share for profit FARNRAERFTEA
attributable to equity holders FEAE & A 2 TR &
of the Company during the year 13
Basic BN HK$3.17#Jt HKS$2.11E T
Diluted e HK$3.17#&Jt HKS$2.11%E 7T

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these F82F164BE MMt A EE S BEHREKH
consolidated financial statements. — R4 o

Details of dividends to equity holders of the Company are set KR Al EZEEF A A BRI S FF1EEH DM E
out in Note 14. 14 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

an\ = i\ﬁj‘&k#ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31H L FE

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FAT
(Restated)
(E5))
Note 2(a)
Bt 3E2(a)
Profit for the year &A% A 1,867,274 1,246,410
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEUA :
Items that will not be reclassified AT eEH P EZEmmEH
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of employee BIEAMEENEHNT=
benefit obligations 6,711 22,846
Items that may be reclassified to HEreeEN D EZEmAE S
profit or loss
Currency translation differences & 5 =5 (6,949) 41,232
Revaluation of available-for-sale AfHESHEENEEBESE
financial assets 5,400 -
Other comprehensive income FREMPEBA - HRFIE
for the year, net of tax 5,162 64,078
Total comprehensive income FAZEBBA
for the year 1,872,436 1,310,488
Attributable to: THIA LR
— Equity holders of the Company —ARRAEEFEA 1,869,931 1,306,401
- Non-controlling interests — IEE AR A 2,505 4,087
Total comprehensive income FAZEBBA
for the year 1,872,436 1,310,488

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

— 85 -

FRE1CAEMMER L FTHRAMBERERE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
saEERE

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%F3H31H

As at 31 March

#3A31H
2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BENE&E 17 566,321 516,172
Land use rights + b {5 AR A 18 182,576 188,717
Investment properties "EYE 19 45,926 32,303
Interests in an associate R—REE N A 2R 21 7,046 7,303
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEEMEE 22 13,500 =
Trading licence R 5 H R 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits and prepayments &% & MBI BRE 23 189,933 100,309
Deferred income tax assets BREFMEREE 31 34,211 30,041
1,040,593 875,925
Current assets MBNEE
Inventories e 24 6,225,280 4,955,374
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 26 225,938 316,629
Deposits, prepayments and e BENEREBEREM
other receivables JE W BR 18 23 274,880 197,745
Derivative financial instruments PTETRMIT A 27 14,528 =
Amount due from an associate FEUR — KBt & A RIAR 1B 21 - 4,068
Income tax recoverable A] Ug [B] B 15 Fi - 25,326
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 33 1,804,937 1,186,808
8,545,563 6,685,950
Total assets BEE 9,586,156 7,561,875
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves RAREDIFE AR
attributable to the equity BEARREE
holders of the Company
Share capital [N 29(a) 58,910 58,910
Share premium &0 = (B 29(b) 2,522,983 2,522,983
Reserves &% 30(a) 4,683,025 3,560,083
Proposed dividends Bk A% B 14 375,851 282,772
7,640,769 6,424,748
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR fE = 58,386 52,845
Total equity 7 FARE 7,699,155 6,477,593

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these Z82F164BE MM A Z 54 M IEHRED
consolidated financial statements. — 2o o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SeEERE

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%F3H31H

As at 31 March

#3HB31H
2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt T#T FAETT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMGHRARE 31 54,793 42,428
Employee benefit obligations BITEMNEE 32 34,517 37,914
89,310 80,342
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables, other payables B ZEMNRIE - B ER
and accruals BRIE K FEET A 28 979,123 938,404
Amount due to an associate FE{S — KBt &~ B BRTE 21 1,771 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 34 568,000 =
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT SR B & 248,797 65,536
1,797,691 1,003,940
Total liabilities BaE 1,887,001 1,084,282
Total equity and liabilities EmkaEeRE 9,586,156 7,561,875
Net current assets MENEEFE 6,747,872 5,682,010
Total assets less current liabilities & EREE & & 7,788,465 6,557,935
Director Director
EF -

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

BERER

As at 31 March 2014
R2014%F3H31H

As at 31 March

»®3A31H
2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt T#T FAETT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI 20 3,338,225 2,531,165
Current assets mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT B~ B BRIE 25 731,982 1,005,460
Cash and bank balances We MIEITLH 33 94,038 4,261
826,020 1,009,721
Total assets BEEE 4,164,245 3,540,886
EQUITY gL
Capital and reserves ERKFHE
Share capital &N 29(a) 58,910 58,910
Share premium B 10 % (B 29(b) 2,522,983 2,522,983
Reserves {1 30(b) 726,427 675,047
Proposed dividends K IR B 14 375,851 282,772
3,684,171 3,539,712
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mEBE
Accruals FESTFRIA 28 2,074 1,174
Bank borrowings IRITEE 34 478,000 =
480,074 1,174
Total equity and liabilities EmkBEEE 4,164,245 3,540,886
Net current assets mENEEFE 345,946 1,008,547
Total assets less current liabilities — #&EREE & & 3,684,171 3,539,712
Director Director
EZE -

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these F82E164BEMMI:I AN ZE ST BHRED
consolidated financial statements. —ED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
12\\52\/\ *")’\,%:,%@J%

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31H L FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRFERKHARG
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
k¥ RHERR -1 ] Mt FERER 2 HERE

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000
TER TR TR TR TR TER

(Note 30(a))
(W EE30(a))

For the year ended HBE2014F3ANALEE

31 March 2014
At 1 April 2013 20134 A1H 58,910 2,522,983 3,842,855 6,424,748 52,845 6,477,593
Comprehensive income  2EHA
Profit for the year FRRF - - 1,864,928 1,864,928 2,346 1,867,274
Other comprehensive Eti2EkA

income
Remeasurements of BIRNEENENGE

employee benefit (Fi32(a)

obligations (Note 2(a)) - - 6,711 6,711 - 6,711
Currency translation BEHES

differences - - (7,108)  (7,108) 159 (6,949)
Revaluation of available- — AT ELREER

for-sale financial assets EEZ - - 5,400 5,400 - 5,400
Total other Eti2E&amA

comprehensive income - - 5,003 5,003 159 5,162
Total comprehensive Eti2ERBALE

income - - 1,869,931 1,869,931 2,505 1,872,436
Transactions with owners BEEAZXH
Establishment of a IEZENRBAR

non-wholly owned

subsidiary - - - - 3,036 3,036
Dividends paid ERRE - - (653,910)  (653,910) - (653,910)
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A31H 58,910 2,522,983 5,058,876 7,640,769 58,386 7,699,155
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

dE N/ g
/\,%n,%

=DAN
YA A .|

EH)R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HZE201463A31H L FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KARERRA AR

Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
BA  BHEE f# PNEE EBRRER  ERASE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THT THT T T THx THL
(Note 30(a))
(M 5#30(a))
For the year ended HE2013F3ANALEE
31 March 2013
At 1 April 2012 20124 A1H 58,910 2,522,983 3,013,631 5,595,524 48,758 5,644,282
Comprehensive income, 2MEHKA + 3l
as restated
Profit for the year, FRER - MA2
as previously reported - - 1,265,797 1,265,797 3,459 1,269,256
Effect of adoption of MBS G ERE195
HKAS 19 (2011) (011F)ME 2
(Note 2(a) GEZIE) - - (22,846) (22,846) - (22,846)
Profit for the year, FREHN - B3
as restated - - 1,242,951 1,242,951 3,459 1,246,410
Other comprehensive Hti2EEA B
income, as restated
Currency translation ERER
differences - - 40,604 40,604 628 41,232
Total other comprehensive  E 2 EAUA -
income, as previously IS
reported - - 40,604 40,604 628 41,232
Remeasurements of BIRNEANETE
employee benefit (Fi7E2(a)
obligations (Note 2(a)) - - 22,846 22,846 - 22,846
Total other comprehensive  Eft 2EAWA » 7]
income, as restated - - 63,450 63,450 628 64,078
Total comprehensive 2EAKA
income - - 1,306,401 1,306,401 4,087 1,310,488
Transactions with owners BHEAZX R
Dividends paid BERKRE - - {@rrarn) @r7477) - @777
At 31 March 2013 120133 A31H 58,910 2,522,983 3,842,855 6,424,748 52,845 6,477,593
The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these F82F164BE MM A ZHEAMBHRETD

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN ANy =i —1
%/T\ =R //|L£?§
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE2014F3A31H L FE

2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & FHETT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities =& /FE 2R &R E
Net cash generated from EEEH RS FRE
operations 35 1,198,438 745,087
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFEH (107,321) (205,756)
Overseas income taxes paid BREINTIS R (129,442) (114,183)
Net cash generated from operating #EEEEL 2B S F5H
activities 961,675 425,148
Cash flows from investing activites ®E/FEBHZHEERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  WERZE
equipment (183,323) (174,153)
Purchase of land use right fEE T AR (650) (129,538)
Purchase of investment property BEREME - (3,348)
Prepayment for purchase BEEF T FERE
of building, land use right H 2 EERIE
and equipment (73,939) -
Purchases of available-for-sale BEHEESMEE
financial assets (8,100) -
Increase in short-term bank ZIHA R A = E A # 5 5
deposits, with maturities HRITF FIE I
over 3 months (158,462) -
Interest received B U F & 15,167 6,741
Establishment of a non-wholly R FEE BB A A
owned subsidiary 3,036 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  WEREE
property, plant and equipment Fr1S 3K 18 746 479
Net cash used in investing activities & EEFTA 2B & 558 (405,525) (299,819)
Cash flows from financing activities E&/EFHZE LR E
Net increase in bank loans HRITE G INFEE 568,000 =
Interest on bank loans RITEFHFE (2,844) (311)
Dividends paid B R (653,910) (477,177)
Net cash used in financing activities FEEEEIATA 2B & 558 (88,754) (477,488)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RekReEFEEYWZ
and cash equivalents #an, O ) 48 467,396 (352,159)
Cash and cash equivalents R4A1BZHE KBS
at 1 April ZEY 1,186,808 1,538,057
Exchange differences &5 =% (7,729) 910
Cash and cash equivalents M3ANBZ2RE RIS
at 31 March EEM 33 1,646,475 1,186,808

The notes on pages 82 to 164 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

82

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 3
September 1996 as a company with limited liability
under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and
retailing of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery, gold
ornaments and gem-set jewellery.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated,
and have been approved for issue by the board of
directors on 25 June 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at fair
value, as explained in Note 3.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
B

—REH

ANEEE (BB BRAR ([RAAA])
M1996F AR A B HERE B &
ERRAREMALAERA A K
= fit 9% = BE Hb 4t ACanon’s Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda °

ARBIREMBEAR (GHEIAKE]D
T2NEEFERACEN T Hm
RKEEMHIRKE R B AR
BRERTERSE -

KR AR R1997F5 A6 £ & B Bt
ARG ABRAR ([BZHT]) £k £
T—ﬁo

BREEHBEEN WESEYBREK
BB T (B 7T]) 2% I E R2014
FOA2AEEES I E T -

wmEEE
ARFZHRERBREDBEEEH
BREEA (BEMBREEDD) &
BopETEREERSRAME (RH
M) B AR MESIEI  REM
BREBEL KBRS -

RHEE BN GRS LA ER— R
HBREEECRETHRE4E -
CEDEELE P R L
56 B 1 1S BE < 05 R B 5 B
W 0 R AR B S A B
BHREMSBEAZME - B0 S5
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

New standards and amendments to existing
standards that are effective for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and are
relevant to the Group’s operations:

(a)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, 11 and 12

(Amendments)

HKFRS 13
Annual improvement
project (2011)

Financial statement presentation
Employee benefits
Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and
joint ventures
Government loans

Financial instruments: Disclosures
- offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosures of interests in other
entities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and
disclosures of interests in other
entities: transition guidance

Fair value measurement

Improvements to HKFRSs
published in June 2012

Except as described below, the application of
the above new standards and the amendments
in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported or disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

2 RWEEE(E)
R2013F4B1BERB 2 REE
AEXERIEARNEEEEE
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CHEY
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{ERTA

EEBERRZNRE

BBYHREES GRVBRE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

2

84

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

New standards and amendments to existing
standards that are effective for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and are
relevant to the Group’s operations: (Continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements

Under HKFRS 10, subsidiaries are all entities
(including structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group has power over an entity, is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect these returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases. The adoption of this standard has had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements
as all subsidiaries already recognised within the
Group satisfy the requirements of control under
HKFRS 10 and there are no new subsidiaries
identified under the new guidance.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
under HKFRS for all fair value measurements.
HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under
HKFRS when fair value is required or permitted.
The application of HKFRS 13 has not materially
impacted the fair value measurements carried
out by the Group. HKFRS 183 also requires
specific disclosures on fair values, some of
which replace existing disclosure requirements
in other standards, including HKFRS 7 Financial
instruments: disclosures. Some of these
disclosures are specifically required in financial
statements for financial instruments; accordingly,
the Group provides these disclosures in Note 4 (b).

2 WEEBER)

(a)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

New standards and amendments to existing
standards that are effective for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and are
relevant to the Group’s operations: (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of
financial statements

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce a grouping
of items presented in other comprehensive
income. ltems that could be reclassified to profit
or loss at a future point in time now have to be
presented separately from items that will never be
reclassified. The adoption of these amendments
only affects presentation and has had no material
financial impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee benefits

HKAS 19 (2011) amends the accounting for
employment benefits. The Group has applied the
standard retrospectively in accordance with the
transition provisions of the standard.

There is a new term “remeasurements”. This
is made up of actuarial gains and losses, the
difference between actual investment returns and
the return implied by the net interest cost. They
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and not recycled to the consolidated income
statement. The “corridor” method and the option
to spread or recognise immediately in the income
statement are no longer available. The standard
also requires the entity to present all actuarial
gains and losses previously recognised in profit
and loss account in other comprehensive income.

2 WEEBER)

(a)

R2013F4B1BERB 2 REE
AEXERIEARNEEEEE
R R RIR B R ZABRT A
€=))

FEEGHERNS® (BTX)
MBBRHEH

HFE G ERIFIR ZEFT A3
A—HREME2EBRATZINZ
HE - RARRXESHEHAEHN D
BEBERZHABRBETTEN
DEZBEENHAE - RKAUF
EAAEZEZI TN L IE
HARERE BB R E KB %5

B2 488
=

HHATHENSE1958
(2011 IiE#
EXESTEBFE195R (201145F) &
FBRIEN gt RESRN A
EEREZER ZBEAESE W
& A2 %2R o

% 2R 5| A — B #1755 [ E #7 &t
BEl-EARBEKREREBEEAR
BRI A O 3 8 F ) 8K A 5|
ZEREFRANK -BEFHEZS
BEREMEmRARER BT
SEHOBEGRABEERT TR
BIERFE#EAFEREBRERT
MRZITESTBER - Z2ER
NHREBERBAMANAERBRER
THERAZBERELREBEEZIE
Ht2mB AR -

Annual Report 2014 3R 85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

2

86

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2
New standards and amendments to existing
standards that are effective for the first time for

the financial year beginning 1 April 2013 and are
relevant to the Group’s operations: (Continued)

(a)

The effects of the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011) on

IREEE ()

(a) H2013F4R1BHB 2 BFE
AERERTERNEEELEE
ZHETZE R RIR B 2R ZAERT AN
(%)

N BB & B F19% (2011

the consolidated income statement are as follows: FIHGEABERZZENT ¢
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#ET FATT
Increase in selling and SHE Ko iH & g
distribution costs 3,825 13,025
Increase in administrative 1T E FE N
expenses 2,886 9,821
Decrease in profit for the year 4 3% Fl 35k 4> 6,711 22,846
Attributable to: FEAE 8 A -
Equity holders of the RAREZFERA
Company 6,711 22,846
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B 2w - -

The effects of the adoption of HKAS 19 (2011)

RMEBGTERIFE195 (2011F) B

on the consolidated statement of comprehensive EARPHRAREZZENT :
income are as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FET
Increase in remeasurements of B TR ETEFHTE
employee benefit obligations #9180 6,711 22,846

The change in accounting policy has had no
effect on the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of cash flows and
immaterial effect on the earnings per share.

B REESHEGEEEEARR KA
ERERNERTETE BHERE

MZEETK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The following new standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2013 and have not been early

(b)

adopted.
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendment)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Investment entities'™

Defined benefit plans:

Employee contribution®

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recoverable amount disclosure
for non-financial assets!”

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting

Levies™

Financial instruments®

Regulatory deferral accounts®

Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycles®?

Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycles®?

“) Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1

April 2014

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1
April 2015

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1
April 2016

@ The effective date has not yet been determined

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the

Group.

2 WEEEGRE)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

88

stated.

3.1 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

3 FEEHBREBE

RENEGREVBRRGAEAZE
REABRERTX -BEEHAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
loss are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with group’s accounting
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

90

(b)

(c)
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Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Associate

An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes any goodwill identified
on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associate (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
results of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Amounts reported by associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest
in an associate is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
collectively as the executive director and senior
management who make strategic decisions.

92

3.3
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Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional and
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised within “other gains/(losses),
net” in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and bank
balances are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income
net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains, net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

94

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the group
losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Construction in progress, mainly representing
buildings on which construction work has not
been completed, is stated at cost, which includes
development and construction expenditure,
interest and other direct costs incurred during the
construction period, less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until
the construction and installation is completed.
On completion, the construction in progress
is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

3.5

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Leasehold land interests classified as finance
lease and other property, plant and equipment
commence amortisation/depreciation from the
time when the assets becomes available for their
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on
other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land interests
classified as finance leases
Buildings

Remaining lease term
of 35-42 years

2% or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold
land, whichever is shorter

20% or over the unexpired
lease period, whichever is

Leasehold improvements

shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 20%
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing net proceeds with carrying amount
of the relevant assets and are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, (if any). Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are
generally situated for a period from 19 to 54 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

96

3.6

3.7

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
is not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30
to 59 years. Where the carrying amount of an
investment property is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

I[f an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment. At the date of reclassification, its cost
and accumulated depreciation are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and become its
cost and accumulated depreciation for accounting
purposes. If an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, it is reclassified as investment
property. At the date of reclassification, its cost
and accumulated depreciation are transferred
to investment property and become its cost
and accumulated depreciation for accounting
purposes.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.9

Impairment of interests in subsidiaries,
interests in an associate and
non-financial assets

Interests in subsidiaries, interest in an associates
and assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill and trading license, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation/depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour and other
direct costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.10 Financial assets

3.10.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and loans, receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of the Group’s financial assets at initial
recognition.

98

(@)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held
for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are categorised
as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current
assets if expected to be recovered
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group and the
Company’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and bank balances” and
“amounts due from subsidiaries” in the
balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures
or management intends to dispose of
it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRARNEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets

3.10.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date -
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains/(losses), net” in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement as
‘gains and losses from investment securities’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)
3.10.2Recognition and measurement

100

(Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the income statement as
part of other income. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

3.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

3.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.12 Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.12 Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale
The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

3.13 Derivative financial instruments which do

not qualify for hedge accounting
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains
or losses depends on whether the derivative is
designated and qualified as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
Since the derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in fair value of any derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.

3 FEEHBREEGE)
S12eMBERE (W)

(b) PEETHHENSEE
AEBERSHREHRTEH—
HepEEN—HeRMEE
EABRENTREZE ¥
REBES  ~AEEBF AL
X ()7 i B 15 o tn B o %R
ABAHEENRAEE &
FAnBEANRBIEGE K
EEREXARTABEERE
WEE MAHEESHE
EFENZERESRZE 2
AT E5 18 (BD Uk B8 X AN B2 3R B
DARABEZEZBREZE R
BERAIRIBRERMEM
VA=Y SRR N
BmER - NiraBm Kk
R A% AR T B (B B R
RiraiBmRER - MR E
BHESEAAHEHENE
BITEMNARBESEMN: M
3 0 AT 25 R 4 B B A A BB
BEEITNESERNSMH
8 AR A EmRED
BB o

BIBFHERBFHIEHEEZ
TTEamTIA
TETAMNTRITET AR DR
NHBPZAABEER  EREZ
ERARBEENTE HERIME
EREBZTABRRZITETA
EREELNAERIELRTA
MEEREHPITAR  AIBUARE
P EEZEE -ARAEE
ZUTESRMI AN TS ERIE
HhestRE  WEATEESR
TAZAABEEZHANRRLE
BIEERER -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Trade and other receivables

3 EEEHMEHEGE)
3.14 W5 B 3 f FE U IR IR

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original term of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement within administrative expenses. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts, if any.

Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are
classified as liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

104

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.16 Share capital (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the
company’s equity share capital (treasury shares),
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to owners
of the company until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the
company’s owners.

3.17 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay
for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.18 Borrowings (Continued)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

3.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised with
‘finance cost’ in consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

3.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

106

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised
on deductible temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

3.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

108

(c)

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held in a separately
administered fund. The MPF Scheme
is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred and
are reduced by the employer’s voluntary
contribution forfeited from the MPF Scheme
by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to
state-sponsored retirement schemes for its
relevant employees in Mainland China. The
Group’s relevant employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes at 15% to
23% of the relevant income (comprising
wages, salaries, allowances and bonuses),
while the Group contributes 26% to 45% of
such income and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are
responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed
as incurred and are fully and immediately
vested in the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRARNEE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
lump sum long service amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange
Fund Notes that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations. All actuarial gains and losses
of defined benefit plans are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

3.22 Revenue and income recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, sales returns and discounts, after
eliminated sales within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery does not occur
until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with
sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22 Revenue and income recognition
(Continued)

110

(0)

(9)

Sales of goods - retall

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.
It is the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery
products to the end customers with a right of
return within one year at a certain discount
on the original selling price. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide
for such returns at the time of sale.

Royalty and service income in respect of the
use of the Group’s trademarks and related
services are recognised on an accrual basis
in accordance with the relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income in respect of
technical and consultancy services are
recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Value-added tax refunds are recognised
at their fair values in the consolidated
income statement when there is reasonable
assurance that the refund will be received
and all the relevant conditions will be
complied with.

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

3.23 Operating leases (as a leasee)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. When a
component of the lease payment which is not fixed
but is based on future amount of a factor, other
than with the passage of time, such as percentage
of sales or concessionaire fees, the amount is
recognised as expenses as it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.24 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(@) Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks, credit
risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage
certain risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
with most of the transactions settled in HKS.
The Group also has retail and wholesale
operations in Macau, Mainland China,
Canada, the United States, Singapore and
Australia. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s
net foreign exchange exposures. The Group
has not entered into any forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure as the directors are of
the view that the potential foreign exchange
exposures are not significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

112

U]

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations
primarily do not expose the Group to material
foreign exchange risk. The Group’s assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in
the respective group companies’ functional
currency.

At 31 March 2014, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with
all other variables held constant, profit
before tax would have been approximately
HK$69,884,000 (2013: HK$19,443,000)
higher/lower respectively.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings. Borrowings at variable
rate expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group does not enter into derivatives to
address these risks.

At 31 March 2014, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
25 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the impact on post-tax
profit for the year would not be significant.
Management considers the cash flow
interest-rate risk related to borrowings to be
insignificant also.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables, deposits, amount
due from an associate and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products on credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 days from the invoice date while
credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults
in the past. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any,
has been made. The Group does not have
a significant concentration of credit risk. No
single customer accounted for more than 1%
of the Group’s total trade receivables during

the year.

The deposits, other receivables and
amount due from an associate are from
counterparties with good credit history.
There is no history of defaults from these

counterparties.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 33
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by

these counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed

credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
related debts and payment for purchases
and operating expenses. The Group finances
its working capital requirements through a
combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and
bank balances and has available funding
through adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its working capital

requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the

Company can be required to pay.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4 HMERSERE(8)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBEREER (]&)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEEFSEBE ()
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash FEIA 2 — KA HE 20
outflows HE

More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less but less undiscounted
1year than2years than5years cash outflows
Bilé—-% BE&RE KUEHAR
—-£R EYREE EORIFE  RHESH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

TET TET T TET
Group 5HE
As at 31 March 2014 1#2014F3A31H
Trade payables and other  Z ZEMNREZRE
payables R 949,603 - - 949,603
Bank borrowings RITRE 568,000 - - 568,000
1,517,603 - - 1,517,603
As at 31 March 2013 #2013%F3A31H
Trade payables and other  Z HENRHRE
payables iR 913,252 - - 913,252
Company . NG|
As at 31 March 2014 1#2014%3A31H
Accruals JER I 2,074 - - 2,074
Bank borrowings RITEE 478,000 - - 478,000
480,074 - - 480,074
As at 31 March 2013 ®201353R 318
Accruals JER IR 1,174 - - 1,174
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(v) Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sale of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. A significant decline in
the prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. The Group
manages commodity price risks mainly by
hedging gold price fluctuations through
certain derivative financial instrument-
trading of gold contracts. Should the gold
price go up, the Group would charge a
loss representing the increase in gold price
compared to the contract price, and largely
net against the increase in turnover of gold
products as a result of gold price increase.
The gold contracts are settled periodically
and the difference between the contract price
and market price is immediately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. As
at 31 March 2014, the notional value of
the outstanding contracts amounted to
HK$382,957,000 (2013: HK$217,686,000).

At 31 March 2014, if the price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
before tax for the year ended 31 March
2014, due to changes in fair values of gold
contracts, would have been approximately
HK$19,148,000 (2013: HK$10,884,000)

lower or higher respectively.

(b) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and bank balances, trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, the
Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and
other payables, amount due to an associate, and
bank borrowings approximate their fair values due

to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as derivative financial
instruments-trading of gold) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held

by the Group is the current bid price.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes are estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31 March

4 MERBREE (]|

(b) 2ARREME (&)
ANBEENME  EREEZA
AEBENEASEREUEHT
AR ERZEREMSMERIERR
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BHSBITANDN - S REM
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s FBEEEXREHEEEMS
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e KBE-AMEENMEIN
BEEXBEBMNAER (AE
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o WIHREABEMBIEE
EWEESXEEHAE
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TREZ% A& ER2014F3 31
BERAABEFENEMEE -

2014.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 £ =R i
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THT THT THT THT
As at 31 March 2014 1201437318
Assets BE
- Derivative financial instruments ~ — 14 &R I E 14,528 - - 14,528
- Available-for-sale financial assets — AL ESREE 13,500 - - 13,500
Total assets BEE 28,028 - - 28,028

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2
during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

4 MERBREE (]|

base to support the operations and development
of its business in the long term.

(c) Capital risk management (c) BXRBEER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital AREBETEEANBEZEARER
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue SEBEEENGE D EHAER
as a going concern in order to provide returns for RiBftol ¥R - AEAM = AEREE
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders 2 25 DA R AR 3538 A8 ) & 2N 28
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to BIAREE AR A o
reduce the cost of capital.
The Group manages the capital structure and $’§I EEERERE THERL
make adjustments to it in the light of changes in BRI EEHELAE - BRI
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust ‘jzpﬂﬁﬁ$ i KEER FHE
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the YA FARE AR B - BT ET AR B
dividend payments to shareholders, issue of new ESHAEITER -
shares or obtain new bank borrowings.
The Group also monitors capital on the basis of REFBNMUNBBEEEL XL E
gearing ratio and the compliance of covenants ERTEEZREREER- E
of its bank borrowings. The gearing ratio is BEELRZNE(RE) EE
calculated as net (cash)/debt divided by total BaaEAR=tE - % (He) EE
capital. Net (cash)/debt is calculated as total bank E‘eb/( ROTEERTERRE RIRTT
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total EHRFTESL - BEAXRTI#E
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the ] (1A i*/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm) i
consolidated balance shest, plus net (cash)/debt. F(Re) EEFESE -
The table below analyses the Group’s capital R E B NR2014E3831H 2 B
structure as at 31 March 2014: RIESTAT :
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T FAET
Total bank borrowings RITEERARE 568,000 -
Less: Cash and bank balances & : 38 & & R1T 4 & (1,804,937) (1,186,808)
Net cash FIRE (1,236,937) (1,186,808)
Total equity M fAFE 7,699,155 6,477,593
Total capital FERZ N 6,462,218 5,290,785
Gearing ratio BREEENX N/AR#E B N/AZ 75 FB
The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital AREBERERASEEEBTHEARELD -

URESBERNEBEREHRERXS -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
financial statements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are set out
below.

(@) Useful lives, residual values and
depreciation/amortisation charges of
property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and investment properties
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation/amortisation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, land use rights
and investment properties with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these
assets. Management will revise the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are
different to previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation/amortisation
expense in future periods.

(b) Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5

120

(c)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, an associate and
non-financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries, investment in an
associate and non-financial assets including
property, plant and equipment and land use rights,
are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs to sell. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
asset can be supported by its recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s reported
financial condition and results of operations.
If there is a significant adverse change in the
projected performance and resulting future cash
flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the consolidated income
statement.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and other jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the
ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such as
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. Deferred income
tax liabilities relating to undistributed profit
of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of
those subsidiaries in Mainland China generated
since 1 January 2008 which is expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred income tax assets and liabilities and
taxation charges in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Provision for long service payment

The Group’s provision for long service payment
is determined with reference to statutory
requirements, the employees’ remuneration, their
year of services and age profile, and demographic
assumptions including: pre-retirement termination,
involuntary termination, early retirement, normal
retirement, death and disability. The basis of
estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and
revised where appropriate. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
provision for long service payments and as a result
affect the results and financial position of the
Group.

(d)

(e)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”)
has been identified as the executive directors and
senior management collectively. The CODM reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The operating
segments are reported in accordance with the internal
reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM considers the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

i Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
ii. Retailing — Mainland China

ii.  Wholesaling — Hong Kong

iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China

V. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income
and costs, corporate income and expenses are not
included in the results for each operating segment that
is reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
an associate, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of reconciliation to total assets of the
consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated income statement and balance sheet.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 PEBEHE\E)

Year ended 31 March 2014

BE2014F3ANALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter - Reportable
Macau and Mainland Wholesaling - Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing  elimination Total
TE-FE. gE- #a- #a- 2B TER
AFIR A EMY g hERE aHER By  oBEH
HKS$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
Tién Tén Tén TER FTién Tén Tén
Revenue KA
Sales to exteral customers  $ISVEFHE 14,513,000 1,649,783 64,612 1,958,656 - - 18,186,051
Sdesofsorapgoldand ~ HEEERASEHR
platinum and gold bullon MR £ (5 - - 409,648 - - - 409,648
14,513,900 1,649,783 474,260 1,958,656 - - 18,596,599
Inter-segment sales DEREE 78,004 23,732 11,182,264 144,416 - (11,428,416) -
Sales of merchandises HEBEm 14,501,004 1673515 11,656,524 2,103,072 - (11,428,416) 18,596,599
Royalty and service income MR RIEB A - - - - 584,434 - 584,434
Consultancy fee income ~ EREWA - - - - 33,807 - 33,897
Total @5 14,591,904 1,673,515 11,656,524 2,103,072 618,331  (11,428,416) 19,214,930
Results of reportable DES: DR
segments 1,660,138 38,973 159,756 172,690 413,266 - 2,444,823
A reconcliation of results of W EFHPEES
reportable segmentsto  ERAFHEMNT :
profit for the year is as
follows:
Results of reportable DEY DL
segments 2,444,823
Unallocated income EARBA 50,059
Unallocated expenses APERY (186,127)
Operating profit BERA 2,308,755
Finance income BEA 15,167
Finance costs BIBER (2,844)
Share of results of Elf-F%%
an associate IGIES (259)
Profit before income tax IS FiERAIAH 2,320,819
Income tax expenses FBHEY (453,545)
Profit for the year ERMRH 1,867,274
Non-controling interests ~ FFRMRER (2,346)
Profit attributable to equity Z4FHEEEA
holders of the Company ~ FE{4 &% 1,864,928
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 SEHEHGE)

Year ended 31 March 2014

BE2014FANALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand  Mainland Wholesaling - Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total
SE-F%. PE- #a- #&- SR mEH
ANRES  hERY Ft hEAE RRRE He  onEn 78 #it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
THL  FET TR FER TER FER TER FER TER
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% * BERREHE
plant and equipment (57,052) (19,658) (1,965) (11,846) (6,101) - (96,622) (18,982)  (115,604)
Amortisation of land ThEREES
use rights - - - (467) (6,653) - (7,120) (13) (7,139)
Depreciation of investment  RANEHE
properties - - - - - - - (1,212 (1,212)
Addtions of non-current  FEHEERE
assets 102,951 22,830 13,979 30,939 73,914 - 244,613 13,299 257,912
As at 31 March 2014
R201453A31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling -~ Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total
SE-F4. E- #a- #a- pog L] CES
AMREN  hEAR Bt hEAR  RHRE He B 2K #it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT  TAR TR TER  TER TER TER TER faR
Segment assets PHEE 5337,181 1,261,126 596,284 1,299,091 487,143 (730,514) 8,250,311 8,250,311
Interests in an associate R —FHE DA ER 7,046 7,046
Land and buldings THEET 225,110 225,710
Investment properties RENE 45,926 45,926
Deferred income tax assets ERXFEHEE 34,211 34,211
Other unallocated assets ~ EHRAEEE 1,022,952 1,022,952
Total assets #gE 9,586,156
Segment liabilities PHaE (384,139) (20,121)  (818,935)  (138,116)  (247,880) 730,514  (878,677) (878,677)
Deferred income tax liabiities & EFT/35 & & (54,793)  (54,799)
Current income tax liabilties ENERFF /S & & (48,797)  (248,797)
Bank borrowings HiTfaE (568,000 (568,000)
Other unallocated liabilties Et AR EE (136,734)  (136,734)
Total liabilities EA-T
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DWBEHEE)

Year ended 31 March 2013

BZ201353A31BLLFE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter - Reportable
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing ~ elimination Total
FE-F% TE- - BE- HHE DES:
RFREN  mERY BF  mERE  oEER 0 288
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
AL T ThL TAL AL Tax T
Revenue KA
Sales to extemal customers ¥/ EFHE 9,919,565 1,013,876 74618 1377,203 - - 12,385,262
Salesofsorap goldand ~ HEEERASEH
platinum and gold bulion LA R &£ {5 - = 575,926 = = = 575,926
9,919,565 1,013,876 650,544 1,377,203 - - 12,91,188
Inter-segment sales PHEEE 338,183 60,434 6,806,576 255,452 - (7,460,645) -
Sales of merchandises HEAEM 10,257,748 1,074,310 7,457,120 1,632,655 - (7,460,645 12,961,188
Royatty and sevice income AR R EMA - - - - 421635 - 421,635
Consultancy fee income ~~ EBFEWA - - - - 28,868 = 28,868
Total @5t 10,257,748 1,074,310 7,457,120 1,632,655 450,503 (7,460,645) 13,411,691
Results of reportable TERAPER:
segments, as restated Ej 1,006,112 66,570 119,449 80,435 287,438 - 1,958,004
Areconciliation of results of  J2HHPEES
reportable segmentsto  ERAFHEMT :
profit for the year is as
follows:
Results of reportable TERAPER
segments, as restated &5 1,558,004
Unallocated income AARHA 48,856
Unallocated expenses, AAREY - E
as restated (105,518)
Operating profit, BERT EN
as restated 1,501,342
Finance income BBIA 6,741
Finance costs H%ER (311)
Share of results of an R E
associate NGIES (1,020
Profit before income tax, RFi AR
as restated Ejl 1,506,752
Income tax expenses FERRY (260,342)
Profit for the year, EREH o BN
as restated 1,246,410
Non-controling interests 2 MRiER (3,459)
Profit attributable to equity A AFHRHEA
holders of the Company, M{ki&#» EFl
as restated 1,242,951
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 SEHEHGE)

Year ended 31 March 2013

BZE013FIANBLEFE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling -~ Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China Hong Kong China  Licensing  elimination Total  Unallocated Total
ZE-EH. 2E- HE- #E- HHE DEE:
AREN  RERY BF  RERE  REER F3f I ADE @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% - BERZEHE
plant and equipment (38,738) (20,315) (1,214) (9,469) (5,666) - (75,402) (16,890) (92,292)
Amortisation of land use -3¢ FI B 8
rights - - - (484) (5,59) - (6,080) (13 (6,093)
Depreciation of investment  &ENEHE
properties = = = = (160) = (160) (1,424) (1,584)
Addftions of non-current  FERHEERE
assets 61,404 25,519 1,319 26,608 168,226 - 283,076 23,963 307,039
As at 31 March 2013
H201363A31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing - Wholesaling - Reportable
Macauand ~ Mainland Wholesaling - Mainland Inter-segment  segments
overseas China Hong Kong China  Licensing  elimination Total  Unallocated Total
ZE-FH- 2E- HE- #E- HHE CEE:
RS RERE BF  REPE  REER F3f I ADE @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Segment assets PHEE 3864219 1,240,816 677,841 1,268,028 356,876 (610,011) 6,897,769 6,897,769
Interests in an associate  M—FHERE 2 ER 7,308 7,808
Land and buildings THREF 210277 210277
Investment properties REnZ 32,303 32,303
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHEE 30,041 30,041
Other unallocated assets ~ ZHAAEEE 384,182 384,182
Total assets HRE 7,561,875
Segment liabilities HHaE (b13,316)  (331,606)  (131,398)  (196,999) (211,298 510,011 (874,666) (874,666)
Deferred income tax liabiities EEFT5H & & (42428  (42,428)
Current income tax liabilties F1EEFT &5 & (& (6553)  (65,536)
Other unallocated liabilites  Eft AR &fE (101,652) (101,652
Total liabilities #BaR (1,084,282)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 9BEFH (|
The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong RKEBZWAZTBREEFEZEFL -
Kong customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong NEBLBE AR AMKRE &+ H
Kong and Macau and Mainland China customers. An A Z BE - X SETZHEE S
analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which the ZAREBWADTT

transaction took place is as follows:

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FAT

Revenue A

Hong Kong B8 11,957,141 8,715,955

Mainland China A b 4,226,770 2,841,582

Macau and overseas Y K o 3,031,019 1,854,154

19,214,930 13,411,691

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other MEEMEWME S 2 AEBRIELRHE
than deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale EMTBEEEMEHREE nHHE
financial assets and rental deposits) by location of CRMEERERZES)DMOT

assets is as follows:

2014 2013
Macau Macau
Hong  Mainland and Hong  Mainland and
Kong China  overseas Total Kong China  overseas Total

& hEAY AMRER #it FE nEAN ARRERN it
HK§'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén Ter TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn

Property, plant and equipment  91%  Bif% Rkt 334,288 197,925 34,108 566,321 326084 170,335 19753 516,172

Land use rights THERE - 182576 - 182576 - 1887 188,717
Investment properties RENE 39,124 6,802 = 45,926 25,259 7,044 - 32,303
Interests in an associate R-FHENAzER 7,046 - - 7,046 7,303 - - 7,303
Trading licence RHHE 1,080 - - 1,080 1,080 - - 1,080
Prepayment for purchase of ~ BEETF -

bulding and lend use THERER

right and equipment B - 73,939 - 73,939 - - = =

381,538 461,242 34,108 876,888 300726 366,096 19,763 745,575
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OTHER INCOME 7 HftlgA
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FAT

Value-added tax refund (Note i) AR FK (P Ei) 50,067 53,968

Government subsidies (Note ii) B ol B (B =) 34,909 31,208

Rental income HaHBA 12,145 6,270

Others Hib 10,389 15,061

107,510 106,507

Notes: B EE -

(i) This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland (i) IbARE TR A EEEZ R R
China; the amount of refund is based on 13% of the cost of the SHEENEBAKANIS%TE - AR ASE
imported diamonds. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a BEALBEBEARSFZKE  r MEAINE
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds BESBRARSMERN  MASEAREE
are imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange. B

(ii) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in (ii) AR B AT R /e Hih e
Mainland China; the amount of the subsidies is mainly based HEIERAEFEETHB AT RS EAM
on 33% (2013: 39%) of value-added tax, 33% (2013: 39%) of %14 233% (20134 : 30% ) #{E B « 33%
business tax and 22% (2013: 26%) of corporate income tax paid BEF (2013F : 39% ) K&22% (20134 :
by certain subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China. 26%) EEFBEBIFHE -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 EBMHESEZHX
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FE T
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of sales $H 5 B AR
— cost of inventories sold (Note) —BEEFERA () 14,807,397 10,431,541
— cost of licensing business (Note) —m R IERCA (M 5E) 193,379 150,119
15,000,776 10,581,660
Staff costs (including the BEIRN(BREESHE)
directors’ emoluments) 733,873 561,686
Operating lease KEHE
— minimum lease payments —HERERK 474,440 284,215
- contingent rents — kA 211,773 126,618
Advertising and promotion expenses E& N EERS 86,652 67,353
Commission expenses to credit SHEAFRRARZAERAS
card companies 168,266 113,402
Depreciation of property, Y BERKEBEITE
plant and equipment 115,604 92,292
Depreciation of investment properties % & ¥ E 1,212 1,584
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 R AR 6 7,133 6,093
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment R EE 2,530 1,055
Auditor’s remuneration % S Em & 4,418 4,141
Insurance 1% ﬁﬁ 12,867 12,280
Packaging materials LYk 23,122 13,267
Repair and maintenance Z&f RRE 10,561 8,516
Rate and related expenses =MKAEEE 18,871 10,495
Property management fee MEERE 27,291 14,727
Electricity BE 20,192 15,918
Others Hh 155,421 114,710
Total P 17,075,002 12,030,012
Representing: ¥
Cost of sales 5B AR 15,000,776 10,581,660
Selling and distribution costs HERDHE 1,923,385 1,323,592
Administrative expenses THREHR 150,841 124,760
17,075,002 12,030,012

Note: Cost of inventories sold and cost of licensing business
include staff costs (including the directors emoluments) of

HK$216,148,000 (2013: HK$166,641,000).

M EEFERARREEBKALIEES K
N(BIFEESEHE) 216,148,000/ 7T (2013

£ : 166,641,000/ 7T) °
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9 OTHER GAINS, NET 9 Htilia B8
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET T T
Net realised gains on derivative PTEEMIAEZ
financial instruments BRI FRE 49,018 7,844
Net unrealised gains on derivative MESMTIAEY
financial instruments AREIR WA FE 14,528 -
Net exchange (losses)/gains SNEE (B598) s F 58 (2,397) 5,453
Others Eb 168 (141)
61,317 13,156
10 FINANCE INCOME, NET 10 MBKA - B8
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
Interest income IFS PN 15,167 6,741
Interest expenses on bank MITEEZHERX
borrowings (2,844) (311)
12,323 6,430
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11 FERAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate EENESHM OB ARFEE LT ER
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable St 3R T & 16.5% (20134F : 16.5%) &F
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been REE - BINSENzHBEIISEAEE
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the Lt ERE RN IE AN EBEKPTE
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in ERRERAEHE o
which the Group operates.
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FAB T
Current taxation: BN EARH I8
- Hong Kong profits tax —BENED 192,161 119,160
— overseas taxation — /BN IE 248,307 129,451
— under/(over)-provision —BEFETR/
in prior years (%8 B e 4,882 (6,604)
Deferred tax (Note 31) EFEFL T8 (B E31) 8,195 18,335
453,545 260,342

Overseas taxation mainly represent the corporate
income tax in Mainland China and the complementary
tax in Macau and is calculated at tax rate of 25% (2013:
25%) and the progressive rate ranging from 9% to 12%
(2013: 9% to 12%) respectively.
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11

12

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:

11

FriSRBAZ (1)
7 2 B[ £ 15 B A% 7 2 BB 808
EERRAEZERPEZRMT

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T T T
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit before income tax & BT 15 34 A & A 2,320,819 1,506,752
Add: Share of results of m: EE—REEAREE
an associate 259 1,020
2,321,078 1,607,772
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 1% %% %16.5% (20134 : 16.5%)
(2013: 16.5%) SAAEZHIE 382,978 248,782
Effect of different taxation rates in HEalZEHETR zFE
other jurisdictions 42,150 (13,438)
Income not subject to taxation BEFR Z WA (8,877) (8,879)
Expenses not deductible for IR [ ds-3s
taxation purposes 7,009 14,781
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BFFETRE,(B5E) BE 4,882 (6,604)
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTLIAE 1B 14,079 13,304
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ) F3 A £ oK #E 52 %% 18 /&5 18
tax losses (1,000) (2,339)
Withholding tax on undistributed A R B B A Rl R 0k
profit of those subsidiaries i Al 2 TR
in Mainland China 12,324 14,735
453,545 260,342

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of HK$798,369,000 (2013:
HK$501,312,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$1,864,928,000 (2013:
HK$1,242,951,000) and the weighted average number
of 589,107,850 (2013: 589,107,850) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2013 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

12

13

FAFIHESAARGER

RARBAEHRERANEIE Z AR H#E
#= 5B A FE R R F A798,369,0007% 7T
(20134 : 501,312,000/ 7T ) °

sEERERN
FRERBFTDBREARDRERF
A A G A % B F)1,864,928,000
7 7T (20134 : 1,242,951,000/% 7T)
FPERNBEHTEER ZMEFHH
589,107,8500% (20134 : 589,107,850
-

BRFAYEEHTEETE SUE
B @A - A Z= 20144 201343 A
SIRLFEs GRETRNEGRE
RBFIER o
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14

15

132

DIVIDENDS 14 IR
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FET
2013/14 interim, paid, of HK$0.63 Bk2013/14F £ HRR &
(2012/13 interim: HK$0.38) T g E @ 0.638 7T(2012/13
per ordinary share FEFHKRE :0.38/8T) 371,138 223,861
2013/14 final, proposed, of HK$0.638 ##ik2013/14%4 & & HAR% &
(2012/13 final: HK$0.48) %A 3%0.63878 T(2012/13
per ordinary share (Note) FERHRE 1 0.48%87T)
(B E) 375,851 282,772
Note: Bt 5T -
At a meeting held on 25 June 2014, the directors recommended the 201466 A25 B R1T 2 G k- EFEHIRAR
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.638 per ordinary share, totalling HIAR B & A% 38 §%0.6387% ot ¢ A& ££375,851,000
HK$375,851,000. Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders BT AR EBEFRELEARQFR2014F8A
at the annual general meeting of the Company on 20 August 2014. 0B BITZREBAF KNG HE o I BIRR B I7 £&
This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividends payable in these EWHEGHEBRPIIIERMKE - SRR AE
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained F2015F3A31BIEFEZRBAEFNDMEL ©
earnings for the year ending 31 March 2015.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 15 BRhigFIR &
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHTT
Net contributions to pension plans RizEEmERFP MR 2
charged to the consolidated RNesrEI M FOFE
income statement 31,583 26,430
The expense is recognised in the following line items in BRI IR EEmR 22U TIEE
the consolidated income statement: A
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET F&T
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER 29,241 23,884
Administrative expenses THRE R 2,342 2,546
31,583 26,430
At 31 March 2014, there were no unutilised forfeited MR2014F3H31H » WE AR H LA H
contributions (2013: Nil). (20134 : 4&) o
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15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(Continued)

16

(i)

(i)

A defined contribution scheme for employees
in Hong Kong, under which the Group and its
employee each contributes 5% of the employee’s
salaries. The forfeited contributions made by the
Group and the related accrued interest are used to
reduce the Group’s future employer contribution.

The MPF Scheme for employees in Hong Kong,
under which the Group and its employee each
makes monthly contribution to the scheme at 5%
of the qualifying earnings of the employee, subject
to a monthly cap of HK$1,250.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
contribute 26% to 45% of the basic salaries of
their employees to retirement schemes operated
by municipal governments. Under the schemes,
the employees also contribute 15% to 23% of their
basic salaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to
the directors of the Company during the year were
as follows:

15 BHEFHRE ()

(i)

(if)

(i)

REBERERIAEMHKE
BHAEEREREHASINE
THEE%IERER - REELHK
Z B3R N AR BE FE T R B & A 1R IR
DAREEBRZBEHRN -

BEBEERIBHMEATEST
2 BUHAEEREREREHER
BEZABERABSNES A #
Ko T AEIE LR A1,250%
=,

ANEB AR E A2 B A A Y
MR 2 BRIRETSIEH 2
HEEEBEREF E26%E45% o
BETE EEARBRFEE Y
AEXRF S HFH15%E23%

16 EEREREEARHS
(a) EFXHS

ENENAANEEZ Mo BE
mF -

2014 2013

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAET

Fees e 2,084 1,770
Salaries, allowances and e EMREDA=

benefit-in-kinds 58,540 59,126
Performance and discretionary 1% 2% 35 By 18 2 1 2 FEAL

bonuses 34,946 30,358

Contributions to pension plan  ER& T3 308 340

Total director emoluments, ENESME RER

payable and expensed in MRS 2B

the financial statements 95,878 91,594
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134

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

16 EEREREELASHS
(#)

(a) ESM& (W)
REFZZMEHIINT :

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #iE20145F3A31ALEE
Salaries, Performance Employer’s
allowances and contribution
and benefit- discretionary  to pension Total
Name of director Fees in-kinds bonuses plan emoluments
e 430 £ ;|
2R BEZR BHeHD
ESfR fie ENN& AL <hE  He#RR
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHT  FERT  TER  TER TaR
WONG Wai Sheung B5EE 55 54,429 14,655 152 69,291
TSE Moon Chuen AmE 55 1,306 4,509 52 5,922
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEE 55 491 4,509 19 5,074
WONG Hau Yeung 55 55 866 5,411 35 6,367
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy ERH 55 623 4,509 25 5,212
CHUNG Vai Ping Bk 55 622 1,353 25 2,055
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - 170
HUI King Wai SRR (820134
(resigned on 20 August 2013) 8A20B BHT) 42 23 - - 65
HUI Chiu Chung R 110 60 - - 170
LI Hon Hung TR 110 60 - - 170
LO Mun Lam, Raymond [ 817 (R2013%
(resigned on 20 August 2013) ¢ 8A20EBHT)* 116 - - - 116
WONG Yu Pok, Marina R E (R20135
(appointed on 20 August 2013) ¢ 8A20HEZT)* 154 - - - 154
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * HER! 281 - - - 281
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * EHE 300 - - - 300
FOK Kwong Man * BB 281 - - - 281
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin * BKB 250 - - - 250
2,084 58,540 34,946 308 95,878

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75#@25%E (B2 ) HR A S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRARNEE

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

16 EEREREELASHS

(#)

(a) EEM&£ ()
H E2013%F3A31HILFE

Salaries, Performance  Employer’s
allowances and  contribution
and benefit-  discretionary  to pension Total
Name of director Fees in-kinds bonuses plan  emoluments
g BER ExH
2RR  BEENR  RAEHE
Y #e  EPNE LA 2R Mess®
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT THET THET THET TARL
WONG Wai Sheung ERE 55 54,180 12,381 146 66,762
TSE Moon Chuen Ame 55 1,218 3,005 51 4,419
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul BN (20124
(resigned on 1 December 2012) 12R1A81) 37 945 4,048 47 5,077
WONG Ho Lung, Danny EhE 55 458 3,095 15 3,623
WONG Hau Yeung Ea51, 59 809 3,715 33 4,612
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy ER 55 574 3,09 24 3,748
CHUNG Vai Ping EHk 55 672 929 24 1,680
WONG Koon Cheung BmE (R20124
(resigned on 22 August 2012) 8A22RET) 22 45 - - 67
CHAN Wai (resigned B8 (120126
on 22 August 2012) 8A22BET) 22 45 - - 67
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline (Note) HER (i) 55 - - - 55
HUI King Wai i1 110 60 - = 170
HUI Chiu Chung RS 110 60 - = 170
LI Hon Hung EN:4 110 60 - - 170
LO Mun Lam, Raymond # B R 300 - - - 300
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * HER 250 - - - 250
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * il 300 - - - 300
FOK Kwong Man * EEX 62 - - - 62
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* B 62 - - - 62
1,770 59,126 30,358 340 91,594

#: Independent non-executive directors.

Note:

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a service contract
with a subsidiary of the Company for her exclusive services for
the promotion of the products and services of the Group (see

also Note 37(b)).

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the years

ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

#: BIFHTES
CEX
R L LB RREBRRY T AR EA

SEMERKRE  BARA —RMBEAR L
R & % (5 R MaE37(b) °

H E2014F R2013F3A3IBILFE VT EES
WEMS -
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EFREREEAESMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#8)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ABREEFMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, three hEEeFTMALTEHR =4
(2013: three) of them are directors of the Company (20135 : =%) BARAIE S -
and the details of their remuneration are disclosed HEZMEHFBE R LEHEE-
in the preceding paragraph. The emoluments of HpmEagamMA T2
the remaining two highest paid individual are as N
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET FHETT
Salaries, allowances and e EMEREDHZ
benefit-in-kinds 5,271 2,844
Performance and discretionary 1% 2% 38 B 15 2% ik 2 JEAL
bonuses 8,567 13,929
Contributions to pension plan  ER4 52|45 200 106
14,038 16,879
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZBMENFE 5 ER :
2014 2013
HK$5,000,001 — HK$ 5,500,000 5,000,001 7C2 5,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$7,000,001 — HK$ 7,500,000 7,000,001 2 7,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$8,500,001 — HK$ 9,000,000 8,500,001 72 9,000,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7t 210,000,000/ T - 1
2 2
(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) EREBEERAEMS
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZBME N T A7
2014 2013
HK$2,000,001 — HK$ 2,500,000 2,000,001& T2 2,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$ 5,500,000 5,000,0018 T2 5,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 - HK$ 7,500,000 7,000,0018 T2 7,500,000/ 7T =
HK$8,500,001 — HK$ 9,000,000 8,500,001 7= 9,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$9,500,001 — HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 7t 2 10,000,0007% 7T =
4 3
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% BERRE
S0

Group
Furniture
and fixtures
and
Landand  Leasehold  computer  Plant and Motor Construction
buildingsimprovements  equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE &#H KER BER
IHERRF MERE  EERG Ba RE  ERIR 11
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
i AL AL T AL T T
At 1 April 2012 #20125451R
Cost A 319,202 174,873 88,533 31,865 18,996 10860 644349
Accumulated depreciation 3t E (302629 (127,152 (57,047) (26,652) (8,076) - (240,189)
Net book value KRFE 288,960 47,721 31,486 5,213 10,920 10860 395,160
Year ended 31 March 2013 &E2013E3A3NALEE
Opening net book value ENEmTE 288,960 47721 31,486 5,213 10,920 10,860 395,160
Exchange differences ERER 1542 (222) 145 51 79 241 1,836
Additions RE 26,180 98,028 34,830 6,414 1576 14218 181,246
Transfer from investment ~~ ERENEEE
properties 31,756 - - - - - 31,756
Disposals HE - (267) (798) (469) - - (1,534)
Depreciation charge mEX (7,674) (60,487) (17,218) 38,152) (3,761) = (92,292)
Closing net book value EREEEE 340,764 84,773 48,445 8,057 8,814 25319 516,172
At 31 March 2013 #2013%3A31A
Cost A 381,110 258,080 120,664 37,756 20,513 25,319 843,442
Accumulated depreciation ~ R3t17E (40,346)  (173,307) (12,219) (29,699) (11,699) - (321,210)
Net book value BEFE 340,764 84,773 48,445 8,057 8,814 25,319 516,172
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE201453A31ALEE
Opening net book value ENERFE 340,764 84,773 48,445 8,057 8,314 25,319 516,172
Exchange differences EiER (35) 328 12 54 37 33 529
Additions RE 48 136,806 24,250 4,964 1,131 15,683 183,323
Transfer to investment ERSRENE
properties (14,823) - - - - - (14,823)
Disposals e - (2,105) (1,143) (28) - - (3,276)
Reclassifcation ENAE - (136) 136 - - - -
Depreciation charge e (8375  (19122)  (20,655) (3,816) (3,636) - (115,604)
Closing net book value EXREFE 318,020 140,544 51,145 9,231 6,346 41,035 566,321
At 31 March 2014 1#2014%3A31H
Cost BA 365418 317,789 140,415 41,20 20,900 4,035 986,827
Accumulated depreciation  E:fHTE (47,398) (237,45  (89,270)  (32,039)  (14,554) - (420,506)
Net book value FAFE 318,020 140,544 51,145 9,231 6,346 4,035 566,321
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 VR  -BERRME ()
(Continued)
Net book values of the land and buildings are analysed THREFZEREFESMA N
as follows:
Group EMH
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T T T
Building outside Hong Kong, EEBAINE 2
held on land with: BFRTIINFAFEER
- Leases of over 50 years —50F A EFA L 340 349
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10&50F 4 92,310 94,688
92,650 95,037
Land and building in Hong Kong, ERBz TR
held on land with: BFRTIINGTAFEER
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 10250 %) 225,370 245,727
318,020 340,764
18 LAND USE RIGHTS 18 1+ FEAE
Group £H
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T FA T
Cost DN 199,500 53,068
Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (10,783) (4,494)
Net book amount AREEE 188,717 48,574
Year ended 31 March HEIASIALEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 188,717 48,574
Addition NE 650 145,273
Amortisation charge BB (7,133) (6,093)
Exchange differences N Z=5 342 963
Closing net book amount FREEFE 182,576 188,717
At 31 March #3HA31H
Cost DN 200,408 199,500
Accumulated amortisation Rt (17,832) (10,783)
182,576 188,717
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18 LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

The net book amount of land use rights is analysed as

18 - ith {5 A 4 (48)

THERBZEREFEINAOT

follows:
2014 2013
HK$7000  HK$ 000
THET FAT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: FERBAIINMEZE TS FNFE
— Leases of over 50 years —50F LA EFHAY 699 712
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10&50%F 49 181,877 188,005
182,576 188,717
19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 BEYE
Group £H
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
At 1 April R4A1H 32,303 62,253
Addition = - 3,348
Transfer to property, plant and EEEYE  BREREE
equipment = (31,756)
Transfer from property, plant and EEAME  BREREKE
equipment 14,823 -
Depreciation e (1,212) (1,584)
Exchange difference X ER 12 42
At 31 March MR3A31H 45,926 32,303
At 31 March M3HA31H
Cost (DN 51,732 35,598
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (5,806) (3,295)
45,926 32,303
At valuation (Note) fh{E (FEE) 158,030 53,342
Note: The valuation of the investment properties as at 31 March Mk : 20144 R2013FE3A31A 2B W% 4

2014 and 2013 were determined by independent valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited and Roma Appraisals Limited respectively,
at open market value. The total valuation amount is
HK$208,707,000 (2013: HK$101,035,000) if the land use right of
the investment property located in Mainland China is included in
the valuation.

BRI BB EEMAPMBETIEERA
ARASEBRTHEARARKRAFAMES
E o MEESREMRPEANMZ REME
2 T AR - fh{E 4 %8 Al £208,707,000
7 7T (20134 : 101,035,000/ 7T) °
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

19 &BWME(&A)

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their AEBREEWEZ EREERTF
net book values are analysed as follows: BEo#HmT :
Group
sE=
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#ET FAETT
Building outside Hong Kong, EEBUIINE 2B F
held on land with: BRTIAAFE
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10Z=50F 4 6,802 7,045
Land and building in Hong Kong, EEBZz LM REF
held on land with: BT AARFE :
— Leases of over 50 years —50%F A EFR 4 1,267 1,295
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10&2505F 4 37,857 23,963
45,926 32,303

Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under

RIBER R B 2 &2 HE MR R KUK

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: Rz HEBELEBUOT
Group
£m|
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FABT
Not later than one year —F A 6,332 2,644
Later than one year and not —FRETHBBRT
later than five years 4,705 1,101
11,037 3,745
20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 PMBLTIZER
Company
N
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETRSE @ IR AE 298,887 298,887
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt /B8 1 A1 BR IR 3,039,338 2,232,278
3,338,225 2,531,165

Amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in HK$
and are unsecured, interest-free, not repayable within
next 12 months from the year end date and with no
maturity date.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 39 to the financial statements.
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21 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

21 R—RXBELQTFZHI

Group
£H

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET FET
Share of net assets, as at 1 April EREEFE  R4A1H 7,303 8,161
Share of results of an associate B —REtE N R EE (259) (1,020)
Currency translation difference & 5 =% 2 162
Share of net assets, as at 31 March JE{h & E FE * 3A31H 7,046 7,303
Amount due (to)/from an associate  (JBff) /FEUL— KB & A AR 18 (1,771) 4,068

Amount due (to)/from an associate is denominated in
HK$ and is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The Group’s associate did not have any significant
capital commitments as at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The key financial information of the associate is as

(AR / FE s — SR B & X R BRIE T A
BLEE YTREER 2ERAR
LREE o

M2014%F 20133 HA31H  A&EE 2
N RN A K E AR ARHE o

BMERRZIEMBERMT

follows:

2014 2013

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FAT

Assets BE 15,498 22,603
Liabilities afE (1,407) (8,036)
Revenue WA 19,352 262,661
Loss for the year FAEE (518) (2,040)

Particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31 March
2014 are as follows:

Particulars of

AE B E AR R2014F3A31 B 27
ERUNNE

Place of issued % of attributable
Name incorporation share capital interests held indirectly  Principal activities
2R FE A3 R ERITRFHE MERTREEREIL IEEH
2014 2013
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50% Manufacturing and wholesale
Company Limited of diamond products
NEERAERAA B 6,120,0007% 70 EREREERIE
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

22 MfHHEEMNEE

ASSETS
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET FE T
At 1 April »®4B1H - -
Additions NE 8,100 -
Net gain transfer to equity (Note 30) ¥ B &= 25 » JF U &5 (Fff 5£30) 5,400 =
At 31 March »®3A31H 13,500 -

Available-for-sale financial assets represent common
shares issued by a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. The available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in HK$. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the

AR ESREER —FNBRM L
mZ’AT%ﬁZi%J&O—M\Hj%G
%ﬁﬁ%lfx}%ﬁiﬂﬁ RE|E R BT R
ZEEEERBRANERAHLES
F&Eéﬁ%Zu %%/Ajﬂﬁfﬁ

securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 # ¢ WA IEER X fhFE Y

RECEIVABLES RIE
Group
H
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tt Tt
Non-current JE BN Ef
Rental deposits MHetke 115,994 100,309
Prepayment for purchase BEET  ITHERAER
of building, land use right HiE 2 BAERIE
and equipment 73,939 -
189,933 100,309
Current Bl AR
Rental deposits MHetke 30,916 13,200
Value-added tax recoverable AT U B E A 121,280 120,908
Prepayments AT AR 1A 31,931 30,035
Other receivables H & U5 AR 18 16,245 13,154
Other deposits Hiviz & 74,508 20,448
274,880 197,745
464,813 298,054
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24

23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 ¥& FHAMNEEREfMEK
RECEIVABLES (Continued) BRI (§8)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, NEFB7IZE - FANNEE K EME
prepayment and other receivables approximate their fair RIECERMESEEARBERSE I
values and are denominated in the following currencies: AT &8 A B R -
Group
£H
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#EIT FET
HK$ 190,287 115,184
RMB 232,466 149,494
MOP 39,467 29,787
Other currencies 2,593 3,589
464,813 298,054
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has EeRHEMEBWEREZEEEENE
been assessed by reference to historical information BLEERBF AR LR ZBESR
about the counterparty default rates. The existing BETHE - REHFHAEELEE
counterparties have not defaulted in the past. At 31 RE2&% o M2014F3A31H ' WEZK S
March 2014, no deposits and other receivables were D H M EWEER R A B RE (2013
considered impaired (2013: Nil). Fm) o
INVENTORIES - GROUP 24 ER-%KH
2014 2013
HK$000  HK$ 000
THET FET
Finished goods 6,222,756 4,952,167
Raw materials 2,524 3,207
6,225,280 4,955,374
At 31 March 2014, inventories carried at net realisable R2014F3A31H » LAl &I FE 7 R
value amounted to approximately HK$14,483,000 Z1FE#)A14,483,0007 T (20134
(2013: HK$5,480,000). 5,480,000/ 7T) °
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES - 25 BEWMELATIRE - AF

25

COMPANY

The balances are denominated in HK$ and are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

ZERBIIABTAHE - L AEER

RERARERER -

Annual Report 2014 £ 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT

26
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BB RARM T

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s sales comprised mainly cash sales
and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales through
department stores and sales to wholesale customers are
generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to 90 days.

26 BWHEWKERR

AEBHETEBRREHEERER
THE AERSEFHEERAILH
EEHEZEER RN FOE0R -

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows: B HREWARTE 2 BRECAD S ¢
Group
&H

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER FAT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 160,058 230,289
31 — 60 days 31£260H 38,850 53,255
61 — 90 days 61290H 14,295 17,915
91 — 120 days 91£120H 8,334 8,368
Over 120 days Hi#®120H 4,401 6,802
225,938 316,629

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

BoRWERE GEEREEAAEER
HE

AEEEZRWEKRBZREENATS
¥ REM

Group

@
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
HK$ P TT 45,597 87,201
RMB AR & 159,130 213,045
MOP JRPITT 19,376 15,629
Other currencies Hip gk 1,835 754
225,938 316,629
The credit quality of trade receivables has been BESRWKRBEEEENERALZEYH

assessed by reference to historical default rate of the

FHBERRLFTETHG - BAY

counterparty. The existing counterparties have not
defaulted in the past.

As at 31 March 2014, trade receivables of
HK$12,735,000 were past due but not considered
impaired (2013: HK$15,170,000) all of which were aged
over 90 days.

F I BELEIE R ©

20143 H31H @ BREL B EO0H M &
S EUWBRIE12,735,000/8 L A E B HIA
I 4 1% 4% A R E (20134 : 15,170,000
BIT) ©
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27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

28

27 TERMIRA

Group
sE
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT TET
Gold future contracts FE2HEESY 14,528 =
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RFEAEHY s e ZERE AR
date is the fair value of the derivative financial %ﬁéﬁégtgﬁtpmgi BTEZA
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet. The AEEH TELBRTERTFASY e
derivative financial instruments are not qualified for HF 2B o

hedge accounting.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 B MEFIEIE - X i fE 15

AND ACCRUALS BRERHIE
Group Company
%H o7
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TET T T TFHET FE T
Trade payables B S EMNERIE 337,992 445,530 - =
Deposits from customers  REBF REFHFEZ
and licensees HisA 260,726 213,075 - =
Salaries and welfare e & REF|
payables 191,742 149,775 - =
Other payables H b AR 94,209 84,470 - =
Accrued expenses JEETE R 94,454 45,554 2,074 1,174
979,123 938,404 2,074 1,174

The ageing of trade payables is as follows:

BHRNEREZREMT :

Group
&H

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
0 — 30 days 0Z30H 251,741 309,219
31 - 60 days 31260H 73,086 120,948
61 — 90 days 61290H 9,336 5,034
91 - 120 days 912120H 2,148 10,167
Over 120 days HBiE1208 1,681 162
337,992 445,530

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other EORNERBEREMEMNKE KRR

payables approximate their fair values. EERAERNAEBEMESE -
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28 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 BHMEMIEIE - X it ¥ 1 15

AND ACCRUALS (Continued) BREsZH:EE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the NEB7ZEFENMNIEE - H i fEEE
Company’s trade payables, other payables and accruals BREFHEBZEREEATIEE R
are denominated in the following currencies: B
Group Company
E L] 27
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$ 000
THT THIT THT THIT

HK$ BT 481,409 412,872 2,074 1,174
RMB AR 327,722 377,533 - =
us$ X7 80,220 104,360 = =
MOP JEFTIT 87,145 41,765 = =
Other currencies Hfh &% 2,627 1,874 - =

979,123 938,404 2,074 1,174

29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 20 BERRBRIGEE
(@) Share capital (a) B&=&

Group and Company
KERALR
2014 2013
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
BiHr&E TET B g g T

Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BREEIETLZ
HK$0.1 each TR 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
Ordinary shares of BREECIETLZ
HK$0.1 each TR 589,107,850 58,910 589,107,850 58,910
(b) Share premium (b) KRR
Group and Company
KERALF
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FHET
At 31 March M3A31H 2,522,983 2,522,983
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30 RESERVES 30 B
(a) Group (a) &=ME
Available-
for-sale
financial
Capital assets Exchange  Statutory  Retained
reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
MHHE
SHMEE

BEGH R EREE EEHE RERY 4]
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TiEx TR TR TR TR TR

(Note i) (Note ii)
(P3E) (&)
For the year ended HE014F
31 March 2014 3RSIALEE
At 1 April 2013 M2013E4A1H 135,713 - 134,910 92,620 3,479,612 3,842,855
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit attributable to equity KARERREA
holders of the Company JE1h &7 - - - - 1,864,928 1,864,928
Other comprehensive income i 2 EiA
Currency translation differences [E 5 =% - - (7,108) - - (7,108)
Remeasurement of employee B T A EEH)
benefit obligations (Note 2(a)) ~ B#f:f £
(MizE2() - - - - 6,711 6,711
Revaluation of available-for-sale Al HELREAE
financial assets (Note 22) MEES
(Ft5E22) - 5,400 - - - 5,400
Total other comprehensive FR2EHRKA
income - 5,400 (7,108) - 6,711 5,003
2012/13 final dividend paid 2 2012/13%
REARE - - - - (282,772 (282,772
2013/14 interim dividend paid 2 T2013/145E
PEIR S, - - - - (371,138  (371,138)
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A318 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,058,876
Representing: =
Reserves fHE 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,321,490 4,683,025
Proposed dividend ) - - - - 375,851 375,851
At 31 March 2014 R2014E3A318 135,713 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,058,876
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30 RESERVES (Continued)
(@) Group (Continued)

30

Available-

Capital
reserve

for-sale
financial
assets
reserve

A E
EREE

BXGR

1]

HK$'000 HK$ 000

it (48)
(a) SM@ (&)

Exchange Statutory Retained

reserve reserves earnings Total
Eimf  iEEE  REEN e

HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000

THAL THL THL THEL THEL THEL
(Note ) (Note i)
(iiE3) (k)
For the year ended #E2013%
31 March 2013 3AMALER
At 1 April 2012 12012454518 135,713 - 94,306 92,620 2,690,992 3,013,631
Comprehensive income, 2K EF
as restated
Profit attributable to equity AREERFAA
holders of the Company, G -
as previously reported MHER - - - - 1,265,797 1,265,797
Effect of adoption of RinE A el
HKAS 19 (2011) 198 (20114 &0
(Note 2(a)) 72 (E2) - - - - (22,846) (22,84)
Profit attributable to equity ARAEREEA
holders of the Company, fefbaA - E31
asrestated ... R e D 2R20T 1202951
Other comprehensive Rt 2@ &7
income, as restated
Currency translation differences  EXZE - - 40,604 - - 40,604
Total other comprehensive EEEAMA -
_ncome, as prevouslyreported.  WAIEE S . L S T dos0s
Remeasurements of BIGAHELN
employee benefit BHHE (M)
obligations (Note 2(a)) - - - - 22,846 22,846
Total other comprehensive A EAKA -
e GBSy B R .| N
2011/12 final dividend paid BR2011/126 8 - - - - (253316)  (253,316)
REKE
2012/13 interim dividend B2012/138 %
paid PERE - - - - (223861)  (223,861)
At 31 March 2013 ®2013E3A31H 136,713 - 134,910 92,620 3,479,612 3,842,855
Representing: =
Reserves E15 135,713 - 134,910 92,620 3,196,840 3,560,083
Proposed dividend Bk e - - - - 282,772 282,772
At 31 March 2013 #®2013%E3A31H 135,713 - 134,910 92,620 3,479,612 3,842,855
Notes: B EE
(i) The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference 0] AEBEAEEIEAEEN1997FE=A

between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in 1997.

(i) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers
of these funds are determined by the Board of Directors
of the relevant Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China.

By P U B B B 1 B) 2 A% 40 T {1 22 ot M 3
TARBBRNDZEEMERZER °

(iy CEAEREBILTADIK BEAREKETA
HETEANEHBE AR EETSRETEA
HARBERE KRR PIRE -
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30 RESERVES (Continued) 30 f#fms (&)
(b) Company (b) 27
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
ERERR ®=EER i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FiExT FE&xT FET
For the year ended #HE20145F
31 March 2014 3A31ALLEE
At 1 April 2013 MR2013F4H1H 298,687 659,132 957,819
Profit for the year F Nz A - 798,369 798,369
2012/18 final dividend 2 1f2012/13F &
paid REA B - (282,772)  (282,772)
2013/14 interim dividend 2 112013/14F
paid FHEIR B - (371,138)  (371,138)
At 31 March 2014 A2014%3A31H 298,687 803,591 1,102,278
Representing: 5 -
Reserves {15 298,687 427,740 726,427
Proposed dividend ¥R A% B - 375,851 375,851
At 31 March 2014 MR2014%F3A31H 298,687 803,591 1,102,278
For the year ended #HFE2013F
31 March 2013 3A31ALLEE
At 1 April 2012 R2012%6F4A1H 298,687 634,997 933,684
Profit for the year F N5 - 501,312 501,312
2011/12 final dividend 22011/125E
paid RHEARR B - (253,316)  (253,316)
2012/183 interim dividend 2 12012/13F
paid R HERRR B = (223,861) (223,861)
At 31 March 2013 A201343A31H 298,687 659,132 957,819
Representing: =
Reserves {1 298,687 376,360 675,047
Proposed dividend R I B - 282,772 282,772
At 31 March 2013 201343 A31H 298,687 659,132 957,819

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of Luk
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value of
net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
by the Company during the Group’s reorganisation
in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders, provided that the
Company would, after the payment of dividends
out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby
not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, its
issued share capital and its share premium. At the
Group level, the contributed surplus is reclassified
into its component of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

KRR ZEBBERIEAR R B B HLuk
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited® &8 &
BT BERMEBETRO CEEREEAR
Al PA1997 4 7K & (B & 48 B AT U i 48
ANBARICEEFEME 2EZ5 °
RIEBRE1981F R al & (BIEE]) -
EHBBAIRETRE HEAQAE
EMBHRIKNEREE AR AESD
R NES KA RRIZEER#
REBFKIGOREGR  HE &7
BRARERGDGEZEMN - AREEH
BEmMS LWEMBRKEEHRS>EAR
EHBANBAR BT D -
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in
respect of:

31

&R 1S 1
7 2 [BE ST B 13 B4 79 3t T 51 4% TR AF
s

Tax depreciation Unrealised profiton  Undistributed profit of those
allowances and tax losses closing inventories  subsidiaries in Mainland China Total
RERERRRAEGE  HXERIAERRY  FAGPEARRELREH A8
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000
tiEn TR TiEn TR TiEn THT TEn TR
At 1 April R4A1H (2,476) 1,362 21,256 27,018 (37,167) (22,432) (12,387) 5,948
(Chargec)/credited to i“?%%(?ﬂ@)/
the consolidated & A (F3E11
income statement
(Note 11) (261) (3,838) 4,390 238 (12,324) (14,735) (8,195) (18,339)
At 31 March H3A31H (2,737) (2,476) 31,646 27,256 (49,491) (37,167) (20,582) (12,387)
Representing: b=
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER T
Deferred income tax assets EESIREE 34,211 30,041
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTS M AE (54,793) (42,428)
(20,582) (12,387)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profit is probable. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$28,509,000 (2013: HK$15,430,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$8,304,000 (2013:
HK$2,486,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$106,957,000 (2013:
HK$79,576,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the next
five years.

FEMSMEEIAE 2 HEEIE
R HEERUKEERARRBRER R
F % 48 B8 B 18 Al 2 3R - 201443
RA31B " AEBABEEBEEAERELER
18 & & $£28,509,000/% JT (20134 :
15,430,000/ L) * ThE B T EE A
HEARERRIKAZHEEEE -2
=t 7% 78 B 488,304,000 T (20134 :
2,486,000 ) Al ER B 488 R &
7 78 [E5 $8106,957,000% 7T (20134 -
79,576,000/ 70) i B A - Bl R R
REFAER e
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32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 32 EAREFEE—RURES

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is obligated to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable
is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued
under the Group’s retirement plan that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations. The long service payments are paid out
from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2014
specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited, using projected unit credit method.

(@@ The amount recognised in the consolidated

REEZEERRBGL AEEBAEER
ETHERAT RERBAEERL R
fﬁZ%?ﬁEE%@ixEﬂvﬁﬁiﬁ—
RUERE - BNHRBALETERESR
ZREHFERREFHEME - WKk E
ZIK‘$@5E17F‘+2HI§T&ZJS%@ZL\M
BEZREED AEEYERDE
MEEEREMBKTEEZEZ R
FEXNAERER 28485
FERSBEFINRAREE

AERBEMEEENBTBEARA
LATE 5T B L :i’f/fm}ﬂzﬁiéﬂl&&lﬁ
EMmEE 2201463 A31H R HIEE T
fl o

(a) REEEEBBRERZFIEN

balance sheet is as follows: T
Group
£H
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FAT
Present value of defined AERAIEEZRE

benefit obligations 34,517 37,914

(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the

(b) C??éﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ B fE)

consolidated balance sheet are as follows: EEBUR :
Group
L |
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
At 1 April R4A1H 37,914 53,921
Expenses recognised in the RiraiEncBER LAY
consolidated income
statement 3,314 6,839
Income recognised in the RizE 2E I AwE
consolidated statement of R WA
comprehensive income (6,711) (22,846)
At 31 March M3H31H 34,517 37,914
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32

152

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

(©

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (#8)
Expenses/(income) recognised in the consolidated ) REEEZRERZEAX (I
income statement is as follows: A) ZIDT
Group
L |
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Current service cost B HA AR 7% & 2,792 6,870
Interest cost A BB AR 522 701
Long service payment benefit ~ KHIR £ & T
made net of MPF Scheme (MpraEesEEF)
benefits - (732)
3,314 6,839
Income recognised in the consolidated statement d) REEE2EBRAREKERZBA
of comprehensive income is as follows: R
Group
L |
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET T T
(Restated)
(E5)
Remeasurements of employees B TREMETHEFH T2
benefit obligations (6,711) (22,846)

32 EEBRIRE-RUBER

The expense is recognised in the following line

items in the consolidated income statement:

M IR aBaERATIIIER

A

Group
L |

2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT THET
(Restated)
(&%)
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 1,889 3,900
Administrative expenses THRE R 1,425 2,939
3,314 6,839
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32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

LONG SERVICE PAYM

ENT (Continued)

(f)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31

March 2014 (expressed

as weighted average) are

(#])

32 EEBRIRE-RUBER

) TF2014FE3A3IHER 2 T E4
HRBRE(ANEFHE27) 0T

as follows:
Group
£
2014 2013
Discount rate 8k 38 =& 2.6% 1%
Future salary increment KRR & L8 4% 4%
Return of MPF balances iR b =N EIE S 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit obligations

HRIBEIREHRE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
RS R R in P
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 4.1% Increase by 4.3%
AhIA X 0.25% B 41% #h14.3%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 2.9% Decrease by 3.3%
Folgkx 0.25% 1 N2.9% A 3.3%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a

A EBRRE D *ﬁ)’b@%ﬁfﬁi&ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁﬁ

change in an assumption while holding all other FiEEm R g TEER - TR
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely HIE R AR 3 s — R rwz@J
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions AT4EAERD o
may be correlated.
33 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 33 BeRBITHER
Group Company
| VN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHERT T T FEx FAT
Short-term bank deposits g HASR 1T 17 3K 471,020 190,928 38,630 =
Cash at bank and on hand R1TIFHR M FHEIRE 1,175,455 995,880 18,232 4,261
Cash and cash equivalents HRE&NREEZHEY 1,646,475 1,186,808 56,862 4,261
Short-term bank deposits, ZFIHIB BB =15
with maturities REIRITIER
over 3 months 158,462 - 37,176 -
Total cash and bank e RIBITEBERR
balances 1,804,937 1,186,808 94,038 4,261

Weighted average effective
interest rate

PO B

2.06% 1.47% 3.07% N/ATEH
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

33 HakBiTHE(E)

Group Company
L | N
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#xT FATT T#xT FABIT
Denominated in: SHEEE
HK$ BT 367,188 529,783 18,228 4,261
RMB AR 1,328,858 365,806 75,810 =
MOP SR TT 69,804 263,823 - =
us$ ETT 24,215 14,008 - =
Other currencies Hih g 14,872 13,388 - =
1,804,937 1,186,808 94,038 4,261

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits
are with initial terms of less than three months and
earn interest at the respective time deposits rates. The
conversion of the RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

RITRERBERITIHEFRNEXER
BAE - BHRTERNERBLIR
=R XWRE B EHFRMNERRR
ME - AARBEIEZEHT BRI
BAXPBBE BN ZINEE F R A
FOEIRFTARIR ©

BANK BORROWINGS 34 1TEE
Group Company
- | VN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000
T#T FAT T#ERT FAT
Short-term bank borrowings %8 #iiR{TE & 568,000 - 478,000 =

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings
were unsecured, of which HK$348,000,000 were
covered by corporate guarantees given by the
Company. The bank borrowings were due for repayment
within three months.

As at 31 March 2014, bank borrowings of
HK$568,000,000 bore interest at floating rates. The
interest rates of the bank borrowings ranged from
1.46% to 1.97% per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in HKS.

The fair value of the Group’s bank borrowings equal to
their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant due to their short-term maturities.

MR2014F3A318  ZEE ZR1TEE
AR R 2 F1348,000,0005 JT A AN
NAREZ RAEERERT - RITE
ER=ZEAANEIHEE -

MR2014E3A31H » A #568,000,000
BILHRITEERZEHFRETE - B
TEEZFFMENT1.46%E1.97% °

R2014%F3H31H » "EE 2 RITEE
LA TTEHE »

ARITEENHREE  BEZED
R-BAt - "EBZRTEEZRA
EELEEFmEEMER -
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35 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 35 IFEHARER
FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash BGREMAIafEEEES 2IH S %
generated from operations: B HERITE
Group
L |
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 0 BiDa A 2,320,819 1,508,752
Amortisation of land use rights T b fsh PR 5E 7,133 6,093
Depreciation of property, plant M- BEREETE
and equipment 115,604 92,292
Depreciation of investment properties & & EITE 1,212 1,584
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WER
plant and equipment HiE BB 2,530 1,055
Provision for long service payment REIRB BB 3,314 6,839
Unrealised gain on derivative TESMTEZ REH WS
financial instruments (14,528) -
Interest income B U A (15,167) (6,741)
Interest expenses BB 5 2,844 311
Share of results of an associate FE(E— KBt & RN RIZEE 259 1,020
Operating profit before working EEESEFAI 2
capital changes 5 2,424,020 1,609,205
Increase in rental deposits HeEeE M (33,401) (49,213)
Increase in inventories FEE (1,269,878) (598,858)
Decrease/(increase) in trade Z5RKERE &g -
receivables, deposits, prepayments 815 BR I8 & H i & Uk BR 1B
and other receivables A, () 32,865 (256,910)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due W JEfT — KB & A A
from/to an associate BRIER A (35 ) 5,839 (25,107)
Increase in trade payables, other B 5 EMNRE - HMEMNRIE
payables and accruals N FE T SRIBIE hN 38,993 65,970
Net cash generated from operations 48 & 4 2 38 & /% 58 1,198,438 745,087
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36 COMMITMENTS 36 i
(a) Capital commitments (a) BFKIE
Group
L |
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T FAB T
Contracted but not provided for: LA~ & I8 E 5] 418 R /E H 5 :
— property, plant and —ME KEREZE
equipment 12,208 16,600
- acquisition of an associated  —WE K& A
company 245,000 -
— grant of shareholder’s loan —m—RKEERRET
to an associated company L N=EN 100,000 =
— subscription of a convertible — —3RE& A A% [E H
bond 57,000 -
Total capital commitments ERTAERIELBH 2
contracted but not BEARAEEERR
provided for 414,208 16,600
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, there 201463 318 &201343 A 31
are no capital commitments which are authorised B WEEAFERFTL 2B A
but not contracted for. ¥’ o
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EEHERIE
At 31 March 2014, the Group had future aggregate MR2014F3A31H » "&EE 7 £+
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HREFRETARE &S
operating leases in respect of land and buildings EMRARINz&ERAENK
as follows: WEEWT
Group
&=
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET T T
Not later than one year —F R 549,733 412,257
Later than one year and not later — 11BN @ A 4
than five years 619,236 438,865
Later than five years BBRF 13,209 2,162
1,182,178 853,284
The actual payments in respect of certain AETREHEETERNRTIIE EX
operating leases are calculated at the higher of the BTt S (K A E EL AR S AE A )5 4 0N
minimum commitments as noted above and the EH T O HMETESB IR S
amounts determined based on a percentage of the EHE o
sales of the related outlets.
() The Company did not have any significant (c) A2 A2014F3H31H I & T
commitment as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil). o] 8 K& HE (20134 : &) o
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which directly
owns 39.75% of the Company’s shares. The remaining
shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
are discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family
Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung
Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which is the
beneficial owner of 36.72% of issued shares of Luk Fook
Control. The remaining shares of Luk Fook Control are
held by various shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the
Company.

(@) The Group has entered a licensing and
maintenance agreement with GS Tech Company
Limited (92% owned by the Wong’s Family Trust)
for acquiring a license to use certain computer
programs and to receive maintenance services
fees. For the year ended 31 March 2014, license
fees of HK$1,109,000 (2013: HK$13,073,000)
and maintenance services fees of HK$2,813,000
(2013: HK$2,525,000) were capitalised in the
consolidated balance sheet and charged in the
consolidated income statement respectively.

(b) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service
contract (“Service Contract”) with Ms. YEUNG
Po Ling, Pauline (a non-executive director of
the Company) and Topone Investments Limited
(“Topone”, an independent third party) for a
period of one year expiring on 31 March 20183.
Pursuant to the Service Contract, Topone agreed
to make available Ms. Yeung’s exclusive services
for the promotion of the products and services
of the Group in consideration of an annual fee of
HK$225,000 for the year ended 31 March 2013.

REALTZRS
ARRIZEERRAEE(ZER) AR
NA([ABER]  AREBHERR
HEAMKIZAR  BEEREBEAR
AI39.75% M 11 o AN A Al 8 T AR ) 5 AR
FA -

EEERLERERE (BREEHEELEE
FEBHEZLT) AERRKET ((E
u%J)Zi%“‘“/\ ZIeE BIEREE
KEBESTERAREHEHITRAZ
E=EA A %iﬁiﬁ%%”ﬁﬁﬁ
ngm?zﬁﬁ/\ZaT f%36.72%E 17 i%
cNBERBTRMOAZ BRI

ﬁf@
o

BEREBPLE BEAELELEREFFAX
THRARAESE -

(a) AEEERHSELENBEHNERA
A (H2%#EmHE RN KR IREHE
BRI T RS HE - AMEA
ETEMEN 2 B R IE %
ERGE - 8 E201463A31H
IEFE - 5B F1,109,000%
JC (20134 : 13,073,0007 7T) &
# 15 R &2,813,000% 7T (2013
F 1 2,525,000% 70) B 5 Bl R 4R
AEERBREAREAEER
AR ©

(b) AAR—FRHBAREKRRNRE
HITESHBERREIRBIYE=
FHR—EFEAR2A ([F—])
AVREAELH (TREE 4]
MR2013%3A318 j@m ° B & IR
BeEH T REZEHBZRLTEAR
SEREEBRRE  UEER
SEMNERLERE - & ZE2013
FIASIBLEFRE REAEBF
225,000 7T °
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

REALZES (H)

(c) Transactions with the associate (c) HREBLATRZES
2014 2013
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt & FERT FAT
Subcontracting charge paid BERo8REH (i) 19,323 16,734
Rental income HE WA (i) 564 484
Management fee income BEEBIRA (i) 1,042 977
Note: i
(i) Rental income, management fee income and 0] BIEEE REE 2 EREEIMEFHE K
subcontracting charged paid were charged at terms A - BEBUARSBER -

based on mutual agreements.

(d) Year-end balances (d) E#EES
Group

@
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T

Amount due (to)/from (FEf) /B —=R
an associate B &N B BRI (1,771) 4,068
Company

N
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
Amounts due from subsidiaries  F& U [t B A 7] BR 18 731,982 1,005,460

158 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<#E5 B (B2 ) BRA S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR MR

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(e) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of
the Group. The compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is shown

MEALTZRS (K])

() XEEHEMS
ZERERRBRES (ITRE
HITES) MAKESREEA
B-pEBRHEZREGME MK
BNETEEEBZMEHT

below:
2014 2013
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#T FET
Directors’ fees FEHE 2,084 1,770
Salaries, allowances and e EBREWHA &
benefits-in-kinds 64,818 63,517
Performance and discretionary 1% 7% 25 [ 15 3% ik 2 fL 4L
bonuses 46,745 44,718
Contributions to pension plan Rk % st 2|4 5% 551 515
114,198 110,520

38 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 6 June 2014, the Company completed the
acquisition of a 50% shareholding in China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (“HKRH”) engaged in retailing and
franchising operations of gold and jewellery products
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China under the
brandname “3D-GOLD” at a consideration of HK$245
million; additionally, at the same day, the Company
subscribed for a convertible bonds of HKRH of
approximately HK$57 million with 3% interest rate per
annum and 5 years of maturity from date of issuance;
CGS has granted the CGS Share Option at US$1 to
the Company; the Company will provide consultancy
services in relation to the operation of business of
3D-GOLD for a period of three years and CGS will
pay an annual fee to the Company which charged at
6% of the audited consolidated profit before taxation
of CGS and its subsidiaries with a capped amount
of HK$10 million; the Company had made a loan of
HK$100 million to CGS as general working capital and
for business expansion of CGS; and the Company will
supply raw materials and finished products to CGS at
terms mutually agreed between two parties.

38 HHEHEEH

M2014F6A68 + A A &) 58 /A U iE
EREBERAR ([RFEER] &
BEEREBRER AR ([EEERER])
ZEBHMBAR  UIEEE|REAE
EF RFETERAMRKERESDS KK
ETENRFTEEER) H50%H -
R AB £245,000,000/ T ° it 4 » R R
B AR A REAH 457,000,000
TEBERERTBRBKES  FHX
B3%  BETHHBFAFEIE P
BE&BRERIZTAARAETHEH
CIRBRE - ARFERELEEEE
¥R REEMRYS  AH=F mF
BEeBRERARAINFE  HER
FEESREEEMBRAA 2 EEREA
& 5 A% R 26% + £ R 410,000,000
B ARARMAPEESRRESER
100,000,000/ 7T fEBHF B £ iR 2 &
BESREBERZA  ARANEH
L5 AW E 2GR R B SR
JE R B SR BB e
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39 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39 TEMNELEIFIB
SUBSIDIARIES
At 31 March 2014, the Company had the following R201453A31R  KRRAIZ FEWE
principal subsidiaries: ANEIAR
Particulars of

Place of issued share Percentage of

incorporation/  capital/registered attributable interests

establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities

301 ERiTRE/ Lt

RIS HRESHE EEREEAL TERE

2014 2013

Interests held directly: EERERESR:
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding

REERRES BT RERR
Interests held indirectly: HMEEEER:
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Authentication of gemstones
MEREETPLARAR Bk 28T BRER
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$12,100 100 100 Property holding
FRRAERAA Bk 12,100 7T LRIES
Ice Collection (International) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
K& (BR)BRAF 3 1007 products

KESHERTERH

Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and provision
KEHRBVIERAA RBARREE 8,000,0003 7 of software development and

services relating to internet
RERR REKHFER
HEERBEERE

Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 a Investment holding, and provision
KEHR (B ERAA Bk 1007 of software development and

services relating to intermnet
RERR RESHFER
HEERERERE

Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100 Gold bullion trading
AEERERAT Bk 14,000,000/ 72 BEMS
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39 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39 TEMELTIEE ()
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

Place of issued share Percentage of

incorporation/  capital/registered attributable interests

establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities

301 ERiTRE/ Lt

RIS HRESHE EEREEAL TERE

2014 2013

Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MEREHE : ()
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management services

to group companies and
wholesale distribution of gold
and jewellery products
AEEEERAT Bk 2ET REEBRETEERTRSE
NEEERABER

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Australia AU$ 100,000 100 - Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Australia) Pty Limited B 100,0002 5 products in Australia
REMEZEE RHBERTELR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(HK) Company Limited & 10087t products
~EREET (BB BRAR BeRRBEEMTELHK
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Macao) Company Limited .33 1,000,0002 produc s in Macau
~ERESTORM) AR AR =B RAEERT ERH
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada CA$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Canada) Limited mex 100 AT products in Canada

RMEARERERABERTERK

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Singapore 581,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Singapore) Pte.Limited AR 1,000,000%7 J3 7T products in Singapore
RN SRS RAEER T ESH

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith USA USD100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(USA) Company Limited %H 100£7 products in USA
REBENERE RREERTELR

Luk Fook 3D Management Limited BVI HK$1 100 - Investment holding
REERRES 1A REER
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39 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39 FRMMELTFIEWE(K&)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/  capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
301 ERiTRE/ Lt
RIS HRESHE EEREEAL TERE
2014 2013
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MEREHE : ()
Max Forum Development Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding
AEERERAA Bk 1007 RENZ
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing and wholesale
EFELXBRAT Bk 3,000,000 distribution of jewellery products
RERMENEREER
AEHE (R ER LA+ Mainland China ~ HK$20,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale, retailing of
HE R 20,000,000/ ¢ gold and jewellery products and
provision of quality examination
services in Mainland China
RPERERSE 13 TEEER
REERARRAEBETRY
BMABESARAR: Mainland China ~ HK$60,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing, wholesale, retailing of
E 60,000,000/ 70 gold and jewellery products and
provision of quality examination
services in Mainland China
RPERMRERSE - % TEEER
REEMM RRRE S8R
BRE(RN) aHiaRARN Mainland China HK$6,000,000 93.3 933 Manufacturing of jewsllery products
E Rt 6,000,000/ ¢ in Mainland China
RAERBREREER
BEMHMBEHERA G Mainland China~ HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding in Mainland China
HER 35,000,000% 1T RPBEAEENE
AEER (L8 ERAR Mainland China USD200,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished diamond
(formerly known as REA 200,000% 7 in Mainland China

EHERA (L8)BRAR)
(MBENEEA(LE)BRAR)

KRB R RETEZED
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39 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39 TEMELTIEE ()
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/  capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
301 ERiTRE/ Lt
RIS HRESHE EEREEAL TERE
2014 2013
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MEREHE : ()
AERE (LR AR A Mainland China HK$500,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
B R 500,000 products in Bejiing, Mainland China
ERERERTERE KRG EED
BNABEHEEBRAA Mainland China HK$2,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand building
B i 2,000,000 7T and promotion in Mainland China
PEP I SRITRIE | AR R
NEREEHKE (R ER AR Mainland China HK$8,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand building
i 8,000,000 and promotion in Mainland China
RRERAEERRE | AR iR
NEfmRE (BE) BRAA Mainland China ~ HK$50,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale of gold and
E R 50,000,000/ 0 jewellery products in Mainland China
RAER S RE T EE e R
NEGEEN(EE)BRAA Mainland China~ HK$50,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
e R 50,000,000 5 products in Mainland China
RPN SRS RAEERSELH
AMEEHKE (BR)ERAR Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand building,
B Rt 3,000,000/ T promotion and provision of
quality examination services
in Mainland China

RPEASRSERRE SRR
HERREAREHEEET RS
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BB RARM T

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39 FERMELFIFEE (&)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/  capital/registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
301 ERiTRE/ EINCL R
RIS HRESHE EEREEAL TERE
2014 2013
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) MERHHEESR : (§)
BEABUFAENIARAA Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing of gold products
PE R AR 5,000,007 HEEMBE
BN ARHERKEERAT Mainland China RMB5,000,000 51 - Manufacturing of gold products
E R AR 5,000,007 EEEMEE
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned + ZEWB AR ARPTRAMK L ZZINE
enterprises in Mainland China 1=E

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies
operate principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BRRAEFPAEN LB RARGE

DBREBKLER -

é% B ERATFIARA BB R
Tﬁif%ﬁﬁﬁwsiﬁﬁﬁ

EI§E@EZ£ cEER

k%A@WFﬂjzﬁﬁAAﬁﬂL

RILEK °
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